Coachella Civic Center, Hearing Room
53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 # www.coachella.org

AGENDA

OF A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE

CiTY OF COACHELLA
PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING

October 26, 2022
6:00 PM

PURSUANT ASSEMBLY BILL 361, ALONG WITH THE GOVERNOR’S STATE OF
EMERGENCY DECLARATION ISSUED ON MARCH 4, 2020, THIS MEETING MAY BE
CONDUCTED VIA TELECONFERENCE.

If you would like to attend the meeting via zoom, here is the link:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84535136970?pwd=L1RhWHBYV3YrdW1uL21GaWVgNXFpZz09
Or one tap mobile :

Us: +16694449171,,84535136970%,,,,*805759# US

Or telephone:

Us: +1 669 444 9171

Webinar ID: 845 3513 6970

Passcode: 805759

Spanish: El idioma espafiol esta disponible en Zoom seleccionado la opcion en la parte de abajo de la pantalla

Public comments may be received via email, telephonically, or via zoom with a limit of 250 words, or
three minutes:

In real time:

If participating in real time via zoom or phone, during the public comment period, use the “raise
hand” function on your computer, or when using a phone, participants can raise their hand by
pressing *9 on the keypad.

In writing:

Written comments may be submitted to the commission electronically via email to
gperez@coachella.org. Transmittal prior to the start of the meeting is required. All written
comments received will be forwarded to the commission and entered into the record.

IF YOU WISH, YOU MAY LEAVE A MESSAGE AT (760) 398-3102, EXTENSION 122,
BEFORE 4:00 P.M. ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING.



http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84535136970?pwd=L1RhWHBYV3YrdW1uL21GaWVqNXFpZz09
mailto:gperez@coachella.org

Agenda Planning Commission Special Meeting October 26, 2022
Page 2

CALL To ORDER:

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

RoLL CALL:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

“At this time the Commission may announce any items being pulled from the agenda or continued to another
date or request the moving of an item on the agenda.”

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:

1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes-October 5, 2022

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

PuBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is
within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.”

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

NON-HEARING ITEMS:

2. Request for a Third 12-Month Time Extension for Architectural Review No. 19-02 to construct a new multi-
tenant retail/office center consisting of two commercial buildings for a total of 22,300 sg. ft. on two vacant
parcels of land totaling 1.9 acres in the C-G (General Commercial) zone located at the southeast corner of
Valley Road and Cesar Chavez Street. (APN 778-280-001 & -002). Juan Carlos Guardado, Applicant.

PuBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL):

3. Tripoli Mixed-Use Project (Proposed Revisions)

Amendments to Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 351 and Architectural Review (AR) 22-04 for the PUD
(Planned Unit Development) Overlay Zone guidelines, design revisions and modifications to conditions of
approval for a mixed-use development consisting of 108 apartment units and 2 retail units on 2.8 acres of
vacant C-G (General Commercial) zoned property at the northeast corner of Cesar Chavez Street and
Bagdad Avenue (APN# 778-081-003 and -001) Applicant: Chelsea Investment Corporation

INFORMATIONAL :

ADJOURNMENT:

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection in the
Development Services Department at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, and on the
City’s website www.coachella.org.



http://www.coachella.org/

Agenda Planning Commission Special Meeting October 26, 2022
Page 3

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Council Chambers, Hearing Room
1515 6™ Street, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 & www.coachella.org

AGENDA

OF A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE

CiTY OF COACHELLA
PLANNING COMMISSION

26 de Octubre, 2022
6:00 PM

DE ACUERDO CON EL PROYECTO DE LEY 361 DE LA ASAMBLEA, JUNTO CON LA
DECLARACION DEL ESTADO DE EMERGENCIA DEL GOBERNADOR EMITIDA EL 4 DE MARZO
DE 2020, ESTA REUNION SE PODRA REALIZAR POR TELECONFERENCIA.

Si desea asistir a la reunion a través de zoom, aqui esta el enlace:

https://us02web.zoom.us/i/84535136970?pwd=L1RhWHBYV3YrdW1ul21GaWVgNXFpZz09
O one tap mobile:

Us: +16694449171,,845351369704#,,,,*805759# US

O teléfono:

Us: +1 669 444 9171

ID del webinar: 845 3513 6970

Cadigo de acceso: 805759

Espafiol: El idioma espafiol esta disponible en Zoom seleccionado la opcidn en la parte de abajo de la pantalla

Los comentarios publicos se pueden recibir por correo electrénico, por teléfono o por zoom con un limite de
250 palabras o tres minutos:

En vivo:

Si participa en vivo a través de zoom o teléfono, durante el periodo de comentarios publicos, use la
funcidn "levantar la mano™ en su computadora, o cuando use un teléfono, los participantes pueden
levantar la mano presionando *9 en el teclado.

Por escrito:

Los comentarios escritos pueden enviarse a la comision electronicamente por correo electronico a
aperez@coachella.org. Se requiere la transmisién antes del inicio de la reunion. Todos los comentarios
escritos recibidos seran enviados a la comision e ingresados en el registro.



http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84535136970?pwd=L1RhWHBYV3YrdW1uL21GaWVqNXFpZz09
mailto:gperez@coachella.org

Agenda Planning Commission Special Meeting October 26, 2022
Page 4

SI LO DESEA, PUEDE DEJAR UN MENSAJE EN EL (760) 398-3102, EXTENSION 122, ANTES DE LAS
4:00 P.M. DEL DIA DE LA REUNION.

LLAMADO AL ORDEN:

JURAMENTO A LA BANDERA:

PASE DE LISTA:

ORDEN DEL DIA ESPECIAL

APROBACION DE LA AGENDA:

“En este momento, la Comision puede anunciar cualquier punto que esta siendo retirado de la agenda o
continuado a otra fecha o solicitar el traslado de un punto de la agenda”.

APROBACION DE LAS ACTAS:

1. Borrador de las Actas de la Comision de Planificacion — 05 de Octubre, 2022

COMUNICACIONES ESCRITAS:

COMENTARIOS DEL PUBLICO (PUNTOS QUE NO ESTAN EN LA AGENDA):

“El publico puede dirigirse a la Comision sobre cualquier tema de interés para el publico que no esté en la
agenda, pero que esté dentro de la jurisdiccion de la materia de la misma. Por favor limite sus comentarios a tres
(3) minutos”.

INFORMES Y SOLICITUDES:

PUNTOS QUE NO SON DE AUDIENCIA:

2. Peticion de una extension de tiempo de 12 meses para la revision arquitectonica N°. 19-02 para construir
un nuevo centro de venta minorista/oficina con multiples inquilinos que consiste en dos edificios
comerciales para un total de 22.300 pies cuadrados en dos parcelas vacantes con un total de 1,9 acres en la
zona C-G (Comercial General) ubicada en la esquina sureste de Valley Road y Cesar Chavez Street.

(APN 778-280-001 & -002). Solicitante: Juan Carlos Guardado.

CALENDARIO DE AUDIENCIAS PUBLICAS (CUASI-JUDICIAL):

3. Proyecto de uso mixto de Tripoli, propuesta de enmiendas al Permiso de Uso Condicional (CUP, por sus
siglas en inglés) N°. 351 y a la revision arquitectonica (AR, por sus siglas en inglés) N°. 22-04,
incluyendo la condicion o aprobacién y las modificaciones de disefio para un desarrollo de uso mixto que
consiste en 108 unidades de apartamentos y 3 unidades de venta minorista en 2,8 acres en la esquina
noreste de Cesar Chavez Street y Bagdad Avenue (APN# 778-081-003 y -001) Solicitante: Chelsea
Investment Corporation.

INFORMATIVO:

SE SUSPENDE LA SESION:



appISa23cfd567d314e2698d1a7697545a06d
appISb670f6b5490249c1ab10e87364d25b95

Agenda Planning Commission Special Meeting October 26, 2022
Page 5

Los paquetes completos de la agenda estan disponibles para inspeccion publica en el
Departamento de Servicios de Desarrollo en 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, y en el
sitio web de la ciudad www.coachella.org.

ESTA REUNION ES ACCESIBLE PARA PERSONAS CON DISCAPACIDAD



http://www.coachella.org/

Iltem 1.

Council Chambers, Hearing Room
1515 6™ Street, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 # www.coachella.org

MINUTES

OF A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE

CiTY OF COACHELLA
PLANNING COMMISSION

October 5, 2022
6:00 PM

PURSUANT ASSEMBLY BILL 361, ALONG WITH THE GOVERNOR’S STATE OF EMERGENCY
DECLARATION ISSUED ON MARCH 4, 2020, THIS MEETING MAY BE CONDUCTED VIA
TELECONFERENCE.

If you would like to attend the meeting via zoom, here is the link:

https://us02web.zoom.us/|/84544257915?pwd=VTdHWIitpYVdOUKINOQWS8vZ1pgUm0zQT09

Or one tap mobile :

Us: +16699006833,, 84544257915#,,,,* 380084# US
Or telephone:

Us: +1 669 900 6833

Webinar ID: 845 4425 7915

Passcode: 380084

Public comments may be received via email, telephonically, or via zoom with a limit of 250 words, or three
minutes:

In real time:

If participating in real time via zoom or phone, during the public comment period, use the “raise hand”
function on your computer, or when using a phone, participants can raise their hand by pressing *9 on
the keypad.

In writing:

Written comments may be submitted to the commission electronically via email to
gperez@coachella.org. Transmittal prior to the start of the meeting is required. All written comments
received will be forwarded to the commission and entered into the record.



http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84544257915?pwd=VTdHWitpYVdOUk1NQW8vZ1pqUm0zQT09

Iltem 1.

Minutes Planning Commission October 5

Page 2

IF YOU WISH, YOU MAY LEAVE A MESSAGE AT (760) 398-3102, EXTENSION 122, BEFORE
4:00 P.M. ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING.

CALL TOORDER: 6:08 P.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Gabriel Perez

RoLL CALL:
Commissioners Present: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Leal, Chair
Virgen, Vice Chair Navarrete
Commissioners Absent: Alternate Commissioner Gutierrez
Staff Present: *Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director.
* Eva Lara, Planning Technician.
*Jesus Medina, Information Technology Technician.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

“At this time the Commission may announce any items being pulled from the agenda or continued to another
date or request the moving of an item on the agenda.”

IT WAS MOVED BY COMISSIONER NAVARRETE AND SECOND BY VICE CHAIR GONZALEZ TO
APPROVE THE AGENDA.

Approved by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Leal, Vice Chair Navarrete, Chair
Virgen.

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Alternate Commissioner Gutierrez.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:

1. Draft Planning Commission Minutes — September 21, 2022

IT WAS MOVED BY COMMISSIONER FIGUEROA AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
NAVARRETE TO APPROVE THE MINUTES.

Approved by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Leal, Vice Chair Navarrete, Chair
Virgen.

NOES: None.




Iltem 1.

Minutes Planning Commission October 5

Page 3

ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: Alternate Commissioner Gutierrez.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

None

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is
within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.”

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

None.

NON-HEARING ITEMS:

2. Historic Preservation Roles - Planning Commission

Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director, narrated a power point presentation for the item. A copy of
the presentation is on file in the Planning Division.

3. Pueblo Viejo Downtown Parking Survey and Consideration of Parking Time Limits.

Eva Lara, Planning Technician, and Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director, narrated a power
point presentation for the item. A copy of the presentation is on file in the Planning Division.

Steve Garcia, owner of Sixth Street Coffee Shop, made himself available for questions and comments.

Rene Rosales, Code Compliance Manager, commented some of the issues with the parking and suggested
Parking meters.

IT WAS MOVED BY COMMISSIONER FIGUEROA AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
GONZALEZ TO CREATE TWO 15 MINUTE PICKUP PARKING SPACES FROM 7:00 AM TO 5:00 PM,
MONDAY THROUGH SATURDAY WITH CONSISTED SIGNAGE AS THE NEW WAYFINDING
SIGNAGE IN FRONT OF THE LIBRARY AND SIXTH STREET COFFEE SHOP.

Approved by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Leal, Vice Chair Navarrete, Chair
Virgen.

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Alternate Commissioner Gutierrez.

4. Request for a second 12-month time extension for Conditional Use Permit No. 321, Conditional Use
Permit No. 322 and Architecture Review No. 20-03 for a multi-tenant development (Fountainhead




Iltem 1.

Minutes Planning Commission October 5

Page 4

Development Phase I1) which consists of a mini market with alcohol sales, and a 12-pump fueling service
station on a 3.1 acre vacant portion of land on an existing partially developed shopping center located at
the northeast corner of Cesar Chavez Street and First Street. (APN 778-020-007 & 778-010-017)

Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director, narrated a power point presentation for the item. A copy of
the presentation is on file in the Planning Division.

ITWAS MOVED BY COMMISSIONER GONZALEZ AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER FIGUEROA
THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. PC2022-23 FOR THE SECOND 12-
MONTH TIME EXTENSION WITH A NEW EXPERATION DATE OCTOBER 14, 2023.

Approved by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Leal, Vice Chair Navarrete, Chair
Virgen.

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Alternate Commissioner Gutierrez.

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL):

5. Freestanding Identification Sign — Eberhard Equipment Architecture Review No. 22-06 Variance No. 22-
03 for the proposed installation of a freestanding identification sign at 21 feet high for an existing
agricultural equipment rental business located on a 3.86 acre site at 86100 Avenue 54 in the M-H (Heavy
Industrial) zone. Eberhard Equipment No. 2 (Applicant) Continued from the Planning Commission
meeting of September 21, 2022Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director, narrated a power point
presentation for the item. A copy of the presentation is on file in the Planning Division.

Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director, narrated a power point presentation for the item. A copy of
the presentation is on file in the Planning Division.

Public Hearing Opened at 7:15 pm by Chair Virgen
Public Hearing Closed at 7:16 pm by Chair Virgen

IT WAS MOVED BY COMMISSIONER GONZALEZ AND SECONDED BY VICE CHAIR NAVARRETE
TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. PC2022-33 APPROVING THE EBERHARD EQUIPMENT
FREESTANDING IDENTIFICATION SIGN UNDER ARCHITECTUAL REVIEW NO. 22-06 AND
VARIANCE NO. 22-03.

Approved by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Leal, Vice Chair Navarrete, Chair
Virgen.

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Alternate Commissioner Gutierrez.

INFORMATIONAL:




Iltem 1.

Minutes Planning Commission October 5

Page 5

6. Development updates
Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director, updated on the following:

Starbucks grand opening and recommendation on landscape maintenance.
Convenience Store and Gas Station coming soon.

Panda Express in construction.

Application from McDonalds CUP modifications.

Pulte and DR Horton Developing housing.

Sunline Transit Hub is in Plan check at this moment.

Tripoli Development is coming back some time the end of this month or in November.

ADJOURNMENT: 7:25P.M.

Respectfully Submitted by,

Gabriel Perez
Planning Commission Secretary

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection in the
Development Services Department at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, and on the
City’s website www.coachella.org.

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

10



http://www.coachella.org/

STAFF REPORT

10/26/2022
To: Planning Commission Chair and Commissioners
FrOM: Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director
SUBJECT: Request for a Third 12-Month Time Extension for Architectural Review No. 19-

02 to construct a new multi-tenant retail/office center consisting of two
commercial buildings for a total of 22,300 sg. ft. on two vacant parcels of land
totaling 1.9 acres in the C-G (General Commercial) zone located at the southeast
corner of Valley Road and Cesar Chavez Street. (APN 778-280-001 & -002).
Juan Carlos Guardado, Applicant.

Item 2.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission grant the third and last 12-month time extension
for Architectural Review No. 19-02 for a new expiration date of August 7, 2023.

BACKGROUND:

On October 12, 2021, the applicant, Juan Carlos Guardado, submitted a first time extension request
for the project, which was granted a two-year term expiring August 7, 2022. The project is a multi-
tenant retail/office center on two vacant parcels of land totaling 1.9 acres in the located at the
southeast corner of Valley Road and Cesar Chavez Street.

On August 7, 2019, the Planning Commission approved Architectural Review No. 19-02 to allow
the construction of a multi-tenant retail/office center consisting of two commercial buildings
totaling 22,300 square feet. One of the proposed buildings is a 6,200 square foot, two-story
building located closer to the intersection of Cesar Chavez and Valley Road. The second building
is 16,100 square feet, one-story building located at the rear of the site with seven (7) potential
tenants. Three points of vehicular access are provided to the proposed development, one from
Valley Road and two from Cesar Chavez Street.

11




The proposed architecture for the proposed two buildings is of a contemporary design with a light
“Golden Gate” exterior stucco color, and a top plate wall measuring a height of 26’ for the two-
story building. The one-story building proposes a top plate at 17 feet and a parapet wall height at
27 feet. The one story building provides a corridor at the entire length of the building with a 9 foot
depth at the ends of the building and 17 feet 6 inches depth at the center of the building.

Additionally, the corridor provides an extended arched design with stuccoed foam with accenting
colors.

+

e N e |
t £ ] jfﬁ + I:':| -
ok L L m 7 —— g

ELEVATION WEST

o ) G0 OO EREATR

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

As part of the previous time extension request, the applicant included a revision on the site plan.for
a modification to the side setback and parking stall count. The revised site plan included a 16’ side
setback from the easterly property line (rear portion of the property) modified from a 10’ setback
on the original plan to accommodate an existing easement. The easement is to remain clear of any
structures, which resulted in a decrease of the building square footage for the one-story building
located at the rear of the site from 16,100 square feet to 14,312 square feet. The one-story building
will still accommodate seven (7) potential tenants. In addition, the parking stall count decreased
from 91 to 88 parking stalls from the original site plan.

PROPERTY LINE

Item 2.

Pl
Fal 2 AT
T ﬁﬁth

14,312 5Q. FT.

SUITE | SUTE 2 SUME 3 1 SAAE 4 SUNE S SUITE§
214652 LIT4SAFL 177050, FT. 213350 FT. 1770 50,7, 217450, FT.

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED MEDICAL
EUDING

620050 FT.

”
* 7z -
&
# ... 3 Lt

l

PROPOSED BUILDING AREA 20,512 §Q. FT. = T e

PROPOSED PARKING AREA 88stalls

PROPOSED maimum building ablowable 20,51 HARRISAN ST

s it = 4 stalls /1000 sq. L 82 STALL o ——

12




The Planning Commission is required to review Architectural Review time extension requests
according to the following criteria in the Coachella Municipal Code.

There will be no significant change in the surrounding neighborhood. There are no further
changes to the proposed project that would result in a change in the surrouding
neighborhood.

The project conforms to existing and new building and zone requirements. The project site
has a zoning designation of C-G (General Commercial) which permits office and retail
uses.

A request for the extension is properly filed with the planning director ten (10) days or
more prior to expiration. The Applicant filed for the extension with the Development
Services Department on August 4, 2022. By requesting a 12-month time extension, it will
ensure the project is valid and can continue with the plan check process.

The applicant states upon affidavit the reasons requiring an extension and such other
criteria as the planning department shall set forth in the application. The Applicant
included the reason for the extension request due to the building plans in plan check.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission grant the third and last available 12-month time
extension for Architectural Review No. 19-02, making the new expiration date August 7, 2023.

Attachments:

1. Applicant’s Letter
2. Approved Site Plan
3. Decision Letter - Conditions of Approval AR No. 19-02

Item 2.

13




COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL & PLANNING DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

August 4,2022

City of Coachella

c/o Planning Department
1515 6" Street
Coachella, Ca

RE: Harrison Blvd, Coachella, CA

To whom it may concern,

| am writing this letter, as per an email | received from Nikki Gomez , Associate
Planner, stating that the Project AR — 1902 extension will expire on August 7,

2022, due to non issued building permit.

“The expiration date is based on the original Planning Commission approval back on August 7,
2019, the 2 consecutive 12 month extension (24 months) granted last year made the new (now)
expiration date to August 7, 2022.

So now, the last and third extension request will have the expiration date of August 7, 2023”.
Based on the procedure stated in Nikki's email, we need to obtain an additional
extension from the Planning Department to continue the process with the building
permit. On 8/3/22, we submitted plans to this department with the current
planning approval extension that was granted on 11/8/21 to complete this

process, and obtain building permit. | am greatly appreciate your assistance
with this matter.

Please call me at (760) 272-9117. Your reply would be greatly appreciated.
Thank you,

Carlos Sanchez
Designer

45-175 Panorama Drive. Suite E Palm Desert, CA. 92260 Phone: (760) 272-9117 cashcla@gmail.com

Item 2.

14




Item 2.

AREA TABULATION

PROPOSED BUILDING 1 14,312 SQ. FT.
PROPOSED BUILDING 2 6,200 SQ. FT.

PROPOSED PARKING AREA 88 stalls

PROPOSED maximum building allowable
20,512 sq. ft. =4 stalls / 1000 sq. ft. 82 STALL

PROPOSED BUILDING AREA 20,512 SQ. .FT.

GENERAL INFORMATION

VICINITY PLAN

OWNER :

LEGAL DESCRIPTION :

BUILDING TYPE:

PROJECT ADDRESS:

GUARDADO GROUP INC.
82204 HIGHWAY 111 NO A
INDIO C A, C A 92201

A.P.N.:778 - 280 - 002
Recorded Book/Page:

PM 186/76

Subdivision Name: PM 25692
Lot/Parcel: 2

VA SPRINKLERED

SEC OF VALLEY RD. &
HARRISON ST. APN 778-280-001

DATE

AREA TABULATIONS: COACHELLA, CA.
TOTAL SITE : 090AcRES U CAS H C LA D ES I G N
& ASSOCIATES
Carlos Sanchez Design
® DRAFTING e DESIGN e LAND PLANNING ®
VACANT LOT CARLOS SANCHEZ
DESIGNER
| PROPERTY I-IN E 45-175 PANORAMA DR. SUITE E PALM DESERT, CA
. . — N (760) 272-9117-Phone CASHCLA@GMAIL.COM
. ‘ 3710.5 189.76 "
) N G LOADNG |
oy | A 0500 |
STANDARDS. ;3. et );,7 iy /, & N B J AN //’ 6,
o otar | ) Ui L . »‘ X
L bl L:\Ig,,J | }l
7o el S 14,312 SQ. FT. |
I | | }l
| 5 5 a
i? W SUITE | SUITE 2 SUITE 3 - SUTEA4 . SUITE 5 SUITE 6 SUITE 7 l}
| ASPHALT DRIVEWAY 2,146 SQ. FT. 2,174 SQ. FT. 1,770 SQ. FT. 4 2,132 8Q. FT. - L,7708Q. FT. 2,174 SQ. FT. 2,146 SQ. FT.
\“ é — 7[77 | - ‘7777;77 l These drawings are an instrument of service and remain the
1 = ‘ | ‘ 1 property of CASHCLA DESIGN & ASSOCIATES.
} } } } E They are not to be_ reproducgd or altered to any third party without
EXST. CURB & GUTTER L: l T , QE -0 CORRIRRRwALKWAY | | \ | CORRDR KAy ‘l the express written permission of Carlos Sanchez
| PREMANUFACTURE CORRI[?@ PREMANUFAC‘%J";% o — el ‘}L NO. REVISIONS
— I S S St CORRISR VALKIAY () % i A
- N W17~ i T i N
9 2S | - =EEEREE = *9,
Q A % (8 E ah 7N\ 7N — 3 - ) | Ll
Li/\ G * oz /)i 4 : ¢ d o0} O JO-0") A\ Z
o o | \\B\ZE O N — DATE ISSUED FOR;
\\/I O i \ \ “;774-§5 NO NO NO NO AN 22 ‘
T M ‘L \ \ w,ﬂ!hw PARKING PARKING PARKING PARKING & / | t
AN o b T S
/ - O | o
7 . o &
— — 2 ~ O
O O o (4
| y o
N » 0 ASPHALT DRIVEWAY S | mﬁ
/ $& Loy — —
e / RelListo aRen
0 §§ — NS : , =
7\ ﬂ , s |
” = L1 | Z S
WALKWA < 26-0 Shmiol Z '&r
N 4 | PROPOSED MEDICAL S
\ % BUILDING —_ &
| 6,200 SQ. FT. r N\
* | PROPOSED COMMERCIAL BUILDING
VACANTLOT |/l O R R 227 I
‘ % g GUARDADO
* 2 ASPHALT DRIVEWAY
*® o P - GROUP INC.
% % \L T N X PAI’;‘}?ING = f =
: . : i q% %% %% 0% % %% % %% H = A— = SEC OF VALLEY RD. &
210.50 i * & @- * ([® ® * F O F o # Si=@\S/\! HARRISON ST. APN 778-280-001
N N h\
- 2 0] — TPROPERTY LINE o A N COACHELLA, CA .
) (E) WALKWAY O i ~ SHEET TITLE
bl
TROPOSEDDRENAY & PERGTY STAVONTDS e O
PROPOSED BUILDING AREA 20,512 5Q. .FT. d 4 |& L-Zlel SITE PLAN
Yo X O
@
PROPOSED PARKING AREA 88stalls N
PROPOSED maximum building allowable 20,512
’ HARRISON ST
sq. ft. = 4 stalls / 1000 sq. ft. 82 STALL HARKLSQN ST NNV F——
CS/ JANUARY 05
(@ _—— CHECKED P 1
KIF
SITE PLAN DATE
SCALE: 1/16"= 10" Oct 26, 2021
JOB NO.
SCALE
2019-03-03
AS NOTED

15



AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WENTWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-3481

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WENTWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-3481

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WENTWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-3481

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WENTWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-3481

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WENTWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-3481

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WENTWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-3481

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WENTWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-3481

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WENTWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-3481

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WENTWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-3481


City of Coachella
Development Services Department

1515 Sixth Street

Coachella CA 92236
(760) 398-3102
Fax (760) 398-5421

Notice of Action by Planning Commission

Subject: Architectural Review No. 19-02
Date of Meeting: August 7, 2019
APPLICANT: Mr. Juan Carlos Guardado

Guardado Group, Inc.
82-204 Highway 111, Suite A
Indio, CA 92201

Action: The Planning Commission opened the public hearing and voted (4/0) to
APPROVE Architectural Review No. 19-02 consisting of a request to construct a
new multi-tenant retail/office center proposing two commercial buildings for a
total of 22,300 sq. ft. on two vacant parcels of vacant land totaling 1.9 acres in the
C-G (General Commercial) zone. (APN 778-280-001, and 002), with the findings
and conditions referenced in the staff report. The condition below has been
modified to reflect the addition of street trees as conditioned by the Planning
Commission:

38. All landscape planter beds in interior parking areas shall be not less than five
(5) feet in width and bordered by a concrete curb not less than six (6) inches
nor more than eight (8) inches in height adjacent to the parking surface. The
applicant shall work with City Staff to add additional street trees to the

landscape plan along Cesar Chavez Street between access drives

By: . Q\‘%q,aﬂ Date: 8"/ 8}/ (9

% 7 7 F .
Luis Lopez, Developmen%‘S’erwces Director

Item 2.

16




o6
Building
Applicant
City Engineer

APPEALS:

Coachella Municipal Code Section 17.70.080. Appeals. B. Time Limit - Filing of Appeal Any
valid appeal shall be filed within fifteen (15) days of the date on which notice of the
recommendation or determination was mailed, except that when the final day for filing an appeal
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, the time for filing for such appeal shall be extended
to the close of business on the next succeeding working day. Mailing of notice shall be as
expeditious as practicable. See also Coachella Municipal Code Sections 17.72.010(1)2,
17.74.040, 17.76.040, and 17.82.040.

Item 2.

17




Item 2.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW NO. 19-02:

. Architectural Review No. 19-02 is approved for one year from the effective date unless an
extension of time is requested by the applicant and granted by the Planning Commission. A
building permit and diligent pursuit of construction shall vest the project entitlements.

. The proposed site plan, floor plans, elevations, and landscape plans as presented may be
modified by these Conditions of Approval.

. Wall signage and a monument sign, if proposed shall be submitted as a separate sign permit
and it shall be approved prior to installation.

Site access improvements shall be in conformance with the requirements of Title 24 of the
California Administrative Code. This shall include access ramps for off-site and on-site
streets as required.

. If applicant is planning to build a wall, separate permits shall be required for wall
construction. The maximum height of the proposed wall is at 6 feet high and it is only
applicable to the east property line of the proposed project.

. Any and all power lines below 50 KV shall be undergrounded and any other overhead
utilities such as telephone lines and cable TV along the frontage of the proposed project.

18




The applicant shall build a decorative wall with pilasters at every 75 feet at a maximum
height of 6 feet at the east property line.

The applicant shall process a lot-merger for the two existing lots, APN 778-280-001 and
002 prior to any building permit issuance.

Engineering:
Grading and Drainage

9.

10.

11.

A preliminary geological and soils engineering investigation shall be conducted by a
registered soils engineer, and a report submitted for review with the precise grading plan and
shall include pavement recommendations.  The report recommendations shall be
incorporated into the precise grading plan design prior to plan approval. The soils engineer
and/or the engineering geologist shall certify to the adequacy of the grading plan.

A precise grading/improvement plan, prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer,
shall be submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer prior to issuance of any
permits. A final soils report, compaction report and rough grading certificate shall be
submitted and approved prior to issuance of any building permits.

A Drainage Report, prepared by California Registered Civil Engineer, shall be submitted for
review and approval by the City Engineer prior to issuance of any permits. The report shall
contain a Hydrology Map showing on-site and off-site tributary drainage areas and shall be
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Riverside County Flood Control District.
Adequate provisions shall be made to accept and conduct the existing tributary drainage
flows around or through the site in a manner which will not adversely affect adjacent or
downstream properties. If the design of the project includes a retention basin, it shall be sized
to contain the runoff resulting from a 10-year storm event and the runoff from a 100-year
storm event shall be contained within basin with shallow ponding (3.5' max.). The basin
shall be designed to evacuate a 10-year storm event within 72 hours. The size of the
retention basin(s) shall be determined by the hydrology report and be approved by the City
Engineer. Retention basin shall be provided with a minimum of 2.00 feet sandy soil if
determined to contain silt or clay materials. Maximum allowable percolation rate for design
shall be 10 gal./s.f./day unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. A percolation test
for this site is required to be submitted. A combination drywell vertical drain field shall be
constructed at all points where runoff enters the retention basin. Drywell & vertical drain
field design shall be based on soils borings made at the proposed drywell locations after the
retention basins have been rough graded. Minimum depth shall be 45-feet. A log that
includes sieve analysis for each strata of the borings shall be submitted to the City Engineer
for confirmation of depth of the vertical drain fields. Underground retention under the

Item 2.

19




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

proposed parking area will be considered as an alternative to surface retention subject to the
approval of the City Engineer.

Applicant shall submit for review and approval by the City Engineer civil plans related to
any existing utility easements in the property on-site and off-site, if any, that may affect the
development of the site.

Site access improvements shall be in conformance with the requirements of Title 24 of the
California Administrative Code. This shall include access ramps for off-site and on-site
streets as required.

Applicant shall obtain approval of site access and circulation from Fire Marshall.

If applicant is planning to build a wall, separate permits shall be required for wall
construction. The maximum height of any wall shall be limited to six (6) feet as measured
from an average of the ground elevations on either side.

Plans shall show if there are any easements for public utilities within the property
boundaries.

Street Improvements

17.

18.

Street improvement plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall be
submitted for engineering plan check prior to issuance of encroachment permits. All street
improvements including street lights shall be designed and constructed in conformance with
City Standards and Specifications. Street flow line grade shall have a minimum slope of 0.35
%.

Applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site improvements including street pavement,

curb, gutter, sidewalk, street trees, perimeter walls, perimeter landscaping and irrigation,

storm drain, street lights, and any other incidental works necessary to complete the

improvements. Driveways shall conform to City of Coachella standards for commercial

driveways with a minimum width of 24.00 feet and curbed radius entrances.

a. Applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit for any improvements constructed within
public right-of-way including alleys.

Sewer and Water Improvements

19.

Sewer & Water Improvement Plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall
be submitted for engineering plan check and City Engineer approval.

Item 2.

20




20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site water improvements and any other incidental
works necessary to complete the improvements. Size and location of sewer and water
improvements shall be approved by the City Engineer.

A separate fire connection is required as per standard W-1, W-4, W-7, W-10 (Above ground)
for the new construction with the following criteria: if a building exceeds 3,600 square feet
and/or has more than 100 seating area. Fire hydrants are required within 250 feet minimum
from the closest building point to the hydrant. Pipe type c-900-CLS-200.

General

Underground or relocation of utility power lines is required along the project’s frontage on
Valley Road and Harrison Street. Previous to construction of offsite improvements; applicant
shall contact utility company IID to contemplate alternatives. Applicant shall obtain a letter
from IID for this purpose and submit to the city with IID’s recommendations.

Prior to issuance of any encroachment permits by the City of Coachella, the applicant shall
resolve CVWD issues related to existing tile drains or irrigation mains located within the
project boundary or along the streets adjacent to the property. If necessary tile drains and
irrigation lines shall be relocated and easement documents prepared for the new location of
any such lines. Plans for the tile drain or irrigation relocation shall be submitted to CVWD
for approval and a copy of the plans shall be submitted to the City for evaluation regarding
possible conflict with City facilities. The applicant shall submit to the City approved copies
of any such relocation plans.

The applicant shall process a lot-line-adjustment between the two parcels to comply with the
requirements of the proposed development.

The developer shall submit a Fugitive Dust Control and Erosion Control plan in accordance
with Guidelines set forth by CMC and SCAQMD to maintain wind and drainage erosion and
dust control for all areas disturbed by grading. Exact method(s) of such control shall be
subject to review and approval by the City Engineer. No sediment is to leave the site.
Additional securities, in bond form, in amount of $2,000.00 per acre of gross area, and a one-
time cash deposit of $2,000.00 are required to insure compliance with this requirement. No
work may be started on or off site unless the PM-10 plan has been approved, the original
plans, and executed dust control agreement, are filed in the engineering department at the
City of Coachella.

Item 2.

21




26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

The applicant shall pay all necessary plan check, permit and inspection fees. Fees will be
determined when plans are submitted to the City Engineering Department for plan check.

Applicant shall comply with the valley wide NPDES permit requirements including but not
limited to submittal of a Preliminary WQMP for plan review accompanied by a $3,000 plan
check deposit and a Final WQMP for final approval including executed maintenance
agreement. All unused plan check fees will be refunded to the applicant upon approval of the
Final WQMP.

Completion

"As-built" plans shall be submitted to and approved by the City Engineer prior to acceptance
of the improvements by the City. All off-site and on-site improvements shall be completed
to the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to acceptance of improvements for maintenance
by the City.

Prior to issuance to of certificate of occupancy, all public improvements, including
landscaping and lighting of the retention basins, and landscaped areas along the exterior
streets, shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

Development Services — L.andscaping:

Final landscaping and irrigation plans shall be submitted to the Development Services
Department for review and approval. Said plans shall conform to the landscaping plan
submitted as part of the subject Architectural Review, and as conditioned herein.

Prior to the issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit detailed landscaping
and irrigation plans for review and approval by the City’s Engineering Department and
Development Services Department.

Landscaping and irrigation shall be provided in accordance with Section 17.54.010(J) of
the Municipal Code and in accordance with the State Model Water Efficient Landscape
Ordinance (AB 1881). Water budget calculations, including the Maximum Applied Water

Allowance (MAWA) and Estimated Total Water Use (ETWU) shall be provided as part
of the landscaping and irrigation plan.

The landscape plan shall provide for a minimum 5-gallon groundcover plants, 5-gallon
shrubs, and 24-inch box trees. The plants and trees shall be irrigated with an automatic and
durable drip irrigation system.

Item 2.

22




34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Item 2.

Landscape areas shall be dressed with a minimum % inch layer of compacted and/or glue-bonded
decomposed granite that cannot be wind driven. A weed barrier underlayment shall be placed
under the decomposed granite.

Plant materials selected shall be represented by symbols that show the plantsat 75% of their mature
size.

The applicant shall obtain written clearance from the County Agricultural Commissioner's Office
regarding the type of landscaping to be planted. The clearance letter shall be included as a
note on the landscape plans. The applicant shall utilize only plants that were listed on the
landscape plan submitted to the Commissioner's office. Any substitutions must be approved by
both the Commissioner's office as well as the City's Development Services Department.

Six-inch concrete bands shall be installed as mow strip borders for planting areas where
separating turf areas or synthetic turfareas from pavement parking.

All landscape planter beds in interior parking areas shall be not less than five (5) feet in width
and bordered by a concrete curb not less than six (6) inches nor more than eight (8) inches in
height adjacent to the parkingsurface. The applicant shall work with City staff to add additional
street trees to the landscape plan along Cesar Chavez Street between access drives.

All non-landscaped and undeveloped areas of the site shall be kept free of weeds and debris
and shall be treated with a dust-preventative groundcoating.

Development Services — Project Design:

Prior to the issuance of building permits, all exterior architectural features and treatments shall be
consistent with the submitted Architectural Review No. 19-02 the projects construction plans
and elevations, and subject to review and approval.

All exposed metal flashing, downspouts, or utility cabinets shall be painted to match the building
color prior to final inspection.

Trash enclosures installed for the project shall be architecturally compatible with the building
and include storage areas for recycling containers. The enclosure shall be constructed to
Burrtec Waste Management Standards and be consistent with the Design Guidelines. Both
Burrtec Waste Management and the City Engineer shall approve the location of the trash
enclosure.

43. All roof mounted mechanical equipment, except solar panels, shall be view obscured by a parapet

wall greater in height than the equipment installed. Ground mounted mechanical equipment shall be
view obscured by landscaping or enclosure.

23




44,

45.

Outdoor storage areas shall be obscured from public view and specifically shall not be
visible from any public roads.

The applicant shall obtain all necessary easements and/or agreements to construct all
access points to the site, from access drive to walkways to the proposed buildings, these
includes the maintenance of landscaping along Valley Road.

Imperial Irrigation District:

46. IID holds easement rights for the Cl 92 kV transmission line and distribution underbuilt
running along the project’s northern property boundary. Any construction or operation on
IID property or within its existing and proposed right-of-way or easements will require an
encroachment permit, including but not limited to: surface improvements such as proposed
new streets, driveways, parking lots, landscape; and all water, sewer, storm water, or any

47.

48.

49.

other above ground or underground utilities (e.g. power lines).

Any and all mitigation necessary as a result of the construction, relocation and/or upgrade
of 1ID facilities is the responsibility of the project proponent.

Before raising any cranes, forklifts or other aerial equipment, applicant should check for
overhead wires. Non-qualified electrical workers and those operating boom type lifting or
hoisting equipment must maintain appropriate clearances from distribution lines and
transmission lines per California Code of Regulations Title 8, Electrical Safety Orders, and
the IID Developer Energy Planning Guide.

If ground excavation is required, even for seemingly benign applications such as anchoring
a tent, please contact Underground Service Alert. This service is free of charge provided
USA is given at least two working days’ notice. You may call toll free at 811 Underground
Service Alert.

Environmental Compliance:

50.

51.

52.

53.

Submit water and sewer plans for approval from Utilities Manager-project required to
connect to City public water and sewer system.

The project will require a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP)-> 25 parking spaces.
Facility will be required to submit a source control survey.

Facility may require grease interceptor(s) if food service establishment is being considered.

Item 2.

24




54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

Submit detailed plumbing and mechanical plans

Install above ground “double Check Detector Assembly” DCDA for fire system; to protect
water supply from contamination or pollution.

Backflow devises will require Reduced Pressure Principle Device (RP) within 12 inches of
water service installed to protect water supply from contamination or pollution.

Install separate 4G-AMI metering system for each building.
Install separate 4G AMI metering system for irrigation system.
The project shall implement the State’s drought mandate which prohibits irrigation with

potable water outside newly constructed homes and buildings that is not delivered by drip
potable water outside or microspray systems.

Fees:

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall pay all Development Fees to
the City; including outside agency fees such as sewer water and utilities. Copies of receipts
shall be provided to the Development Services Department prior to permit issuance.

The applicant shall be responsible for paying all applicable development and processing
(plan check, inspection, etc.) fees associated with this project.

The applicant shall pay all required water connection fees.

The applicant shall be required to pay any applicable Multiple Species Habitat
Conservation (MSHCP) fees for industrial development prior to issuance of building
permits.

The applicant shall comply with the City's Art in Public Places Ordinance. If the applicant
elects to pay in-lieu art fees, then the fees shall be deposited into the Public Arts Fund at an
amount of One-half (1/2) of one percent (1%) for new commercial and industrial

construction.

The project is subject to payment of all industrial development impact fees whether or not
explicitly stated in other conditions of approval or the environmental mitigation measures
for the subject project.

Item 2.

25




Riverside County Fire Department:

66. Fire Department emergency vehicle apparatus access road locations and design shall be in
accordance with the California Fire Code, Riverside County Ordinance 460, Riverside
County Ordinance 787, and Riverside County Fire Department Standards. Plans must be
submitted to the Fire Department for review and approval prior to building permit
issuance.

67. Fire Department water system(s) for protection shall be in accordance with the California
Fire Code, Riverside County Ordinance 787, and Riverside County Fire Department
Standards. Plans must be submitted to the Fire Department for review and approval prior to
building permit issuance.

68. Submittal to the Office of the Fire Marshal for development, construction, installation and
operational use permitting will be required.

Coachella Valley Unified School District

69. The Coachella Valley Unified School District is authorized by the State Legislature to levy
a developer fee on commercial/industrial development. The fee has been established at
$.56 per square foot of all commercial/industrial development. The fees collected will be
used to assist in the housing of students within the Coachella Valley Unified School
District. The fee will be required to be paid prior to the issuance of the building permit.

Miscellaneous:

70. Installation of sidewalks along all public roads may be satisfied by an improvement
agreement subject to review and approval by the City Engineer.

71. Final design plans for proposed landscaping and fencing along the project street frontages
shall be presented as an administrative item before the Planning Commission for final review
and approval.

72. A minimum of two points of access shall be provided during all phases of construction to
the satisfaction of the Riverside County Fire Marshal’s office.

Item 2.

26




10/26/2022

STAFF REPORT

To: Planning Commission

FROM: Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director
SUBJECT: Tripoli Mixed-Use Project (Proposed Revisions)
SPECIFICS:

Amendments to Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 351 and Architectural Review

(AR) 22-04 for the PUD (Planned Unit Development) Overlay Zone guidelines,
design revisions and modifications to conditions of approval for a mixed-use
development consisting of 108 apartment units and 2 retail units on 2.8 acres of
vacant C-G (General Commercial) zoned property at the northeast corner of
Cesar Chavez Street and Bagdad Avenue (APN# 778-081-003 and -001)

Applicant: Chelsea Investment Corporation

Item 3.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Chelsea Investment Corporation requests Planning Commission approval of revisions to the
architectural design and conditions of approval for the Tripoli Mixed-Use project, a mixed-use
development consisting of 108 affordable apartments units, with 1-3 bedroom options, and two
retail spaces on 2.8 acres at the northeast corner of Cesar
Chavez Street and Bagdad Avenue as follows:

Building A — 3-story 49,794 sq. ft. building consisting
of 44 apartment units, a 652 sq. ft. multi-purpose
room, and 1,805 sq. ft. ground floor retail space
modified to 50 apartments units, 2 commercial spaces
of 1,031 sqg. ft. each and 1,790 sq. ft. community
room/lounge. (Southwest corner of 6™ Street and
Tripoli Ave)

Building B —4-story 71,079 sq. ft. building consisting
of 64 apartment units, a 1,296 sg. ft. community room
and a 1,413 sq. ft. ground floor retail space modified
to a 3-story building consisting of 58 apartment units,
2 commercial spaces of 992 sq. ft. each (Northeast
corner of Cesar Chavez Street and Bagdad Avenue)
Outdoor Tot Lot (relocated at the front of Building A)

BAGDAD AVE

SUEZ RD

CALLE CAMACHO

CAIRQ AVE

Cesar Chavez Street

DAMASCUS AVE

GAIRO AVE

BAGDAD AVE

TRIPOLI WAY

DAMASCUS AVE

MEDINA AVE ‘@
=

CAIRD AVE A
ARABY AVE
e

27




BACKGROUND:

The subject site is a vacant commercial property and historical aerial photographs from 1953
identify a previous large commercial/industrial building on the site and later removed on 1996
aerial photographs. Chelsea Investment Corporation is currently constructing a 3-story, 105-unit
mixed-use development, Pueblo Viejo Villas, on 2.61-acre site north of this subject site as a transit-
oriented development approved under Change of Zone 17-03. A transit hub on 1.66 acres at the
corner of Fourth Street and Cesar Chavez Street will be constructed in association with Pueblo
Viejo Villas and will be operated by Sunline Transit Agency.

At a public hearing on April 20, 2022, the Planning Commission recommended approval of
Change of Zone (CZ) 22-01, Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 351, Architectural Review (AR) 22-
04 to amend the Official Zoning Map by adding the PUD (Planned Unit Development) Overlay
Zone on 2.8 acres of vacant C-G (General Commercial) zoned property for a mixed-use
development consisting of 108 apartment units and 2 retail units. The City Council approved the
project at a public hearing on May 11, 2022.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS

The surrounding land uses and zoning designations are as follows:

North: Existing commercial development and Pueblo Viejo Villas, (C-G, General
Commercial and C-G PD).

South: Rancho Grande Markets (C-G, General Commercial).

East:  Residential neighborhood and vacant land (C-G, General Commercial and R-S,
Residential Single Family).

West:  O’Reilly Auto Parts and Cesar Chavez Street (C-G, General Commercial).

Site Plan

The applicant proposes modification of an approved mixed-use development consisting of 108
apartment units and 2 retail spaces within 2 buildings in the Pueblo Viejo District. Building A was
approved for a 3-story; 49,794 sq. ft. building located toward the Southwest corner of 6™ Street
and Tripoli Avenue. Building B was approved as a 4-story, 71,079 sq. ft. building located toward
the Northeast corner of Bagdad Avenue and Cesar Chavez Street. Both buildings would be
constructed near property line with building frontages on 6™ Street, Tripoli Way, Bagdad Avenue
and Cesar Chavez Street and on-site parking oriented behind the buildings consistent with goals
of the Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan. The orientation of the buildings support the City’s goals
of promoting a walkable downtown environment with a well-designed public realm.

The applicant proposes to maintain the same unit count of 108 apartments with 1-3 bedroom unit
options, but proposes to reduce the size of all units and the unit number in Building B in order to
reduce the size of Building B from 4-stories to 3-stories. The community lounge space is proposed
to be merged into Building A and total community lounge space reduced by 158 sqg. ft. The
community space will include kitchen space, restrooms, and 6 computer stations. The retail space

Item 3.

28




Item 3.

available for the project would increase by 1,548 sq, ft. under the new proposal with two retail
suites in each building.

Figure 1: Site Plan (Original)

25 // -I \\

CESAR CHAVEZ

=3

=

CESAR CHAVEZ || |-
4+44

i
1L
T

e
!
|

4.

29




Item 3.

Original Approved P

New Proposal

Building A e 13- 0ne bedroom 581-586 sq. ft. | ¢ 12 - One bedroom 542 sq. ft.

Unit Size e 17 - Two bedroom 799 sq. ft. e 24 - Two bedroom 702 sq. ft.
e 14 - Three bedroom 1,061 sq. ft. | e 14 - Three bedroom 932 sq. ft.
Total Units: 44 units Total Units: 50 units

Building B e 14 - One bedroom 581-586 sq. ft. | e 15 - One bedroom 542 sq. ft.

Unit Size e 35 - Two bedroom 799 sq. ft. e 27 - Two bedroom 702 sq. ft.
e 15- Three bedroom 1,061 sq. ft. |e 16 - Three bedroom 932 sq. ft.
Total Units: 64 units Total Units: 58 units

Community Building A Building A

Rooms/Lounges | ¢ 652 sq. ft. community room e Merged with Building B

(1 Floor Only) | Building B Building B

1,296 sq. ft. community room

Total Community space: 1,948 sq. ft.

1,790 sq. ft. commercial space
Total Community Space: 1,790 sq.

ft.
Tot Lot | 218 sq. ft. 813 sq. ft.
(Outdoor)
Commercial Building A Building A
Space (1% Floor | ¢ 1,085 sg. ft. commercial space e 2 commercial spaces (1,031 sq. ft.
Only) Building B each — 2,062 sq. ft. total)
e 1,413 sq. ft. commercial space Building B
Total Retail: 2,498 sq. ft. e 2 commercial spaces (992 sq. ft.
each — 1,984 sq. ft. total)
Total Retail: 4,046 sq. ft.
Parking -On-Street Parking 41 spaces -On-Street Parking 38 spaces

-On-Site Parking 118 spaces
Total Parking: 159 spaces

-On-Site Parking 104 spaces
Total Parking: 142 spaces

A 218 sq. ft. fenced tot lot was originally proposed near Building A with playground equipment
for children and is now proposed to be increase in size to 813 sq. ft. near Building B. No details
of the playground equipment were submitted for the Architectural Review, but will be reviewed
during building permit plan check.

Parking

The applicant proposed on-site parking area consisting of 118 parking spaces accessed by
driveways from Bagdad Avenue and Tripoli Way. The new proposal reduces on-site parking to
104 parking spaces. Parking based on 120,873 sg. ft. of gross floor area, would require 362 spaces
in the Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan. The applicant proposes 104 on-site parking spaces and
38 on-street parking spaces. The Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan draft development standards
allow for on street parking to be counted toward required parking if within 500 feet of the main
entrance of the development. Senate Bill 35 allows affordable housing development within ¥2 mile

30




of public transit to be exempted from parking standards. With the application of density bonus
law, only 61 parking spaces would be required or a surplus of 81 parking spaces. Staff is
supportive of allowing the development to utilize on-street parking to count towards satisfying
parking requirements, which would be provided by constructing 10 diagonal parking spaces on
Bagdad Avenue and 28 diagonal parking spaces on Tripoli Way.

Staff has indicated to the applicant a preference for creating diagonal parking spaces on 6™ Street
along the frontage of the retail spaces to increase parking count. A condition of approval
(Condition No. 51) for adding diagonal parking on 6" Street has been included.

Architectural Design

The overall architectural style of the approved project incorporates Spanish Colonial Revival
design. The applicant proposes a redesign of the project to reduce costs due to conditions of
approval for inclusion of elevators in both buildings and the original architectural design would be
cost prohibitive. The applicant selected a new architect that designed the Pueblo Viejo Villas
mixed use project and elected to include many of that development’s architectural elements. The
original design included a pronounced first floor retail area for Cesar Chavez Street and 6™ Street,
significant articulation of building features, recessed windows, undulating roofline with several
tower features. The applicant redesigned the project and presented new designs for a substantial
conformance approval at the administrative level. The Development Services Director determined
that the proposed site plan and architectural elevation changes were substantial and would require
public hearing approval by the Planning Commission and City Council. The Director also
provided comments to improve the design so that the redesigned project could be recommended
for approval to the Commission and Council. The applicant worked on design revisions based on
staff comments, which are presented in figures 4-7 below.

Figure 3: Rendering at the Corner of Cesar Chavez Street and Bagdad Avenue
(Original Approval)

Item 3.

31




Item 3.

Figure 4: Cesar Chavez Street Comparison (Approved vs. Proposed) Bldg B

@EE HE Eﬂg
2| EIEI!l.El

Bagdad Avenue Frontage (Proposed)

32




Item 3.

Figure 6: Tripoli Avenue Comparison (Approved vs. Proposed) Bldg A

N . Jl | LLLJ|

6t Street Frontage (Proposed)

33




Staff is of the opinion that the original architectural design was a superior design compared to the
proposed design and recommended to the applicant that substantial design enhancements be
focused on the most publicly visible portion of the development such as 6™ Street and Cesar
Chavez Street. The applicant retained many of the first floor retail architectural features, added
finials on towers, and included the slaked stucco decorative features along the roofline that are
characteristic of Spanish Colonial Revival design. The applicant does not propose to incorporate
recessed windows, sloped window sills, window awnings above the first floor, mortar packing for
roof tile, or bull nosed stucco building edges.

Staff has included recommended design revisions in condition of approval No. 19 that includes
decorative cornices, increase in use of divided lites, and increase in use of tower features. Roof tile
materials and construction consistent with Spanish Colonial Revival design is still recommended
in condition of approval no. 20 with greater flexibility. Smooth stucco finishing and bull nosed
corners are still recommended in condition of approval no. 21, but staff would be amenable to
smooth finish stucco that does not include undulations if demonstrated to be infeasible. Condition
of approval no. 17 for a 15-foot ceiling for the first floor retail is still recommended as the
applicant, Chelsea Investments, has provided similar ceiling heights in other mixed-use
developments in their development portfolio. Staff believes that the increase in ceiling height will
create a greater desirable retail establishment setting as recommended in the Pueblo Viejo
Revitalization Plan. The proposed first floor ceiling height is 9°1”. Staff seeks the Planning
Commission input on the first floor ceiling height and if a lower ceiling height is appropriate.

Landscape Design

The applicant proposes to maintain the same landscape pallet but proposes not to revise the
landscape plan that would accommaodate trees along the edge of the curb at Cesar Chavez Street
and instead intends to maintain the existing sidewalk in place. Staff does not recommend that the
existing sidewalk remain and requests that the original condition of approval for a separated
sidewalk with trees adjacent to curb consistent with the Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan be
implemented.

The plant palette shows a variety of trees including “Mulga”, “Hong Kong Orchard,” “Desert
Willow,” “Texas Ebony,” “Drake EIm” and “California Fan Palm.” The project is conditioned to
modify the landscape plan to create planters adjacent to curb at Cesar Chavez Street and planted
with Hong Kong Orchard trees to provide shade for pedestrians. The planters will include water-
efficient shrubs including “Bank Catclaw”, “Do-La-la Bougainvillea”, “Compact Texas Ranger”,
“Mexican Bush Sage.” Succulents will include “Dwarf Century Plant,” “Blue Flame Agave,” “Red
Yucca”, and “Toothless Desert Spoon”. A cluster of palm trees is also provided at the corner of
Cesar Chavez Street and First Street along with other landscape materials design to make the future
public art location a focal point. The applicant is unable to meet the requirement of 10 shade trees
at every 10 parking spaces due to the proposed solar carports.

CONSISTENCY WITH THE GENERAL PLAN

The proposed project is within the Downtown Center land use designation of the General Plan
2035 Land Use and Community Character Element. The Downtown Center is intended to bring

Item 3.

34




the entire community together in a one-of-a-kind Coachella Center, which allows for commercial
uses. The General Plan allows for a residential density of 20-65 dwelling units/acre and a Floor
Area Ratio of 0.5-3 for commercial uses. The project proposes a density of 38 dwelling units per
acre and is thereby consistent with the General Plan. The project is consistent with the policies of
the Land Use and Community Character's Sub-Area #2 policies, which recognize that Downtown
is the heart of the City where mixed use development is encouraged and creates a new gateway to
downtown near intersection of Sixth Street and Cesar Chavez Street.

CONSISTENCY WITH ZONING

The subject site is zoned C-G (General Commercial) zone, which does not allow for mixed-use
development and specifically only permits a residential unit as a proprietors unit. The Zoning is
currently inconsistent with the General Plan land use as the future zoning should be Downtown
Center, which would accommodate mixed-use development at a density of 20-65 dwelling
units/acre. In order to accommodate this type of development, the applicant requests amend the
Official Zoning Map with approval of the PUD (Planned Unit Development) Overlay Zone on the
2.8 acres of vacant C-G (General Commercial) zoned property, which allows the applicant to
establish flexible development standards and permitted uses insofar as it is consistent with the
General Plan. Staff requested that the applicant incorporate the draft development standards of the
Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan, which identifies this area as the Sixth Street Pueblo Viejo Zone
and Cesar Chavez Pueblo Viejo Zone. The project complies with the draft Development Standards
of the Sixth Street Pueblo Viejo Zone, except for unit size, parking, retail space height, residential
first floor height, and public/common open space requirements.

Table 3 — Development Standards

Item 3.

Zoning Ordinance/ Pueblo | Proposed Complies
Viejo Revitalization Plan with Code
Parking Zoning - -On-Street  Parking 38 | No—Due to
(Minimum) Retail: 1 parking space for each | spaces the location
250 sq. ft. of gross floor area. -On-Site  Parking 104 | within 1/2
Restaurants: 1 space per each 45 | spaces mile of
sg. ft. of customer area plus one | Total spaces: 142 spaces public
space for each 200 sq. ft. of non transit hub,
customer area. the project is
Multi-family: requires One space exempt from
per dwelling unit. parking
PV standards- requirements
Mixed-Use: 3 spaces for 1,000 under SB
sq. ft. of gross floor area. Or 362 35. Dueto
spaces density
bonus law
61 spaces
required.
Lot Zoning - Minimum Lot width | Lot width exceeds 50’ Yes
Requirements 50°

35




Item 3.

Height Zoning - 35” maximum 60’ No —
(maximum) PV standards — No maximum, Though
but requires at least a minimum complies
3 stories. with PV
standards
Density Zoning — No density standard in | 38 du/acre Yes —
C-G zoning. Complies
PV Standards — 20-65 du/acre with PV
standards
and General
Plan
Unit Size Zoning — None e 1 bedroom 542 sq. ft. No —but may
PV Standards — e 2bedroom 702 sq. ft. | be permitted
e 1 bedroom 750 sq. ft. e 3 bedroom 932 sq. ft. in the PUD
e 2 bedroom 900 sq. ft.
e 3 bedroom 1,050 sg. ft.
Public ~ Open | Zoning — None No public open space No
Space PV Standards - 10% for | provided.

Requirement

development over ¥ acre

Landscaping Zoning Substantially
e Parking area or driveway | e All areas exceed 10’ fully in
abutting a street requires a | landscaped setback compliance.
10’ setback fully landscaped. | e Internal landscaping % Project
e Internal landscaping equalto | not  identified  but | conditioned
a minimum of 5% of the | required by condition of | tocomply
parking and driveway area. approval. with all
e One 15 gallon tree for every | e Due to Solar Canopy | landscape
10 parking spaces. structures for on-site | Standards.
e All landscape planter beds in | parking this 15 gallon
interior parking areas shall | tree standard cannot be
be not less than 5° in width met.
e The rear property line
planter to the rear of
Panda Express is less
than 5°.
Mixed-Use Zoning — residential uses not | Zoning —  Applicant | Zoning —
Standards permitted, unless a | proposes zone change to with
proprietor/manager/custodian allow mixed-use | approval of
unit. development  with  a| Change of
PV Standards planned unit development Zone
e Residential ~ first  floor | PV standards PV
development floor height | e First floor development | Standards
must be elevated at least 3’ floor height is Not 3> | Complies
above the sidewalk plane. above the sidewalk generally

except for

36




Item 3.

e The first floor must be a|e The first floor retail | residential
minimum of 15 feet in height Not 15 feet in height. first floor
to accommodate modern and retail
commercial/retail activities. height.

Figure 6: Zoning District and Design Guidelines Subareas

=
a

RE)

[

-

.'J# el

WY CC.PV Zone | Cesar Chavez Street Subarea
o \ N B GB-7V Zonel Grapefruit Boulevard Subarea
'y i | S5V Zone/ Stth Swreet Subarea

[0 7 TR-PV Zone! Transition Area

Tt P i) | o D WA N | ey Jl B L |

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT CONSIDERATION

N

The City of Coachella has determined that the proposed project is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15332 as an infill
development because the project involves development on a site under five acres where the parcel
complies with General Plan policies and zoning regulations, and where the project site has no value
as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species, and where the site can be adequately served
by all required utilities and public services, and the project will not result in any significant effects
relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality. The subject site is surrounded on all sides
by urban uses and has no suitable habitat for endangered species. There are existing utilities and
public services available to serve the site. As proposed, the project will comply with General Plan
policies and zoning code regulations and the project does not result in any significant traffic, air
quality, or water quality impacts. As such, no additional environmental review is required.

37




ALTERNATIVES:

1)

2)

3)

3)

Adopt Resolution No. PC 2022-24 recommending that the City Council approve CUP 351
and Architectural Review No. 22-04 with the findings and conditions as recommended by
Staff.

Adopt Resolution No. PC 2022-24 recommending that the City Council approve CUP 351
and Architectural Review No. 22-04 with the findings and conditions as recommended by
the applicant.

Not approve Resolution No. PC 2022-24 and maintain existing approvals of Council
Resolution No. 2022-48 (CUP No. 351 and AR No. 22-04 and Ordinance 1193 CZ 22-01).

Continue this item and provide staff and the applicant with direction.

RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE(S):

Staff recommends alternative #1.

Attachments:

1.

O~ oo pw

9

Resolution No. PC2022-24 for CUP No. 351 and AR No. 22-04

Exhibit A — Conditions for Approval for CUP No. 251 AR No. 22-04

Exhibit B - Planned Unit Development Guidelines/Standards

Alternate Resolution No. PC2022-24 Exhibits: )

Exhlbltt %\) - Conditions for Approval for CUP No. 251 AR No. 22-04 (Applicant
equeste

E)_(ﬂ_ib_it B - Planned Unit Development Guidelines/Standards

Vicinity Map )

Approved Development Plan Set — (Site Plan,

Floor Plan, Elevations, Preliminary Grading)

Approved Landscape Plan _

Proposed Development Plan Set — (Site Plan,

Floor Plan, Elevations, Preliminary Grading)

Proposed Landscape Plan

Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan (https://www.coachella.org/departments/pueblo-

viejo-revitalization-plan) o

o - one — Sixth Street Pueblo Viejo Zone

e CC-PV Zone — Cesar Chavez Pueblo Viejo Zone

Original Material Board

10. Original Architectural Design Recommendation board

Item 3.

38



https://www.coachella.org/departments/pueblo-viejo-revitalization-plan
https://www.coachella.org/departments/pueblo-viejo-revitalization-plan

RESOLUTION NO. PC2022-24 Attachment 1

Item 3.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA PLANNING
COMMISSION RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT
TO CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 351 AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW
22-04, AMENDING THE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS/GUIDELINES
AND DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND SIGN PROGRAM FOR THE
TRIPOLI MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT CONSSITING OF 108
RESIDENTIAL APARTMENT UNITS AND RETAIL TENANT SPACES
ON 2.8 ACRES AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF CESAR CHAVEZ
STREET AND BAGDAD AVENUE. (APN 778-081-003 AND 778-081-001)
CHELSEA INVESTMENT CORPORATION (APPLICANT).

WHEREAS Coachella Investment Corporation filed an application for amendments to
Conditional Use Permit (CUP 351) and Architectural Review (AR) 21-12 to modify conditions of
approval and project design of a mixed-use development consisting of 108 affordable apartment
units and 2 retail tenant spaces within two buildings located at the northeast corner of Cesar Chavez

Street and Bagdad Avenue (APN 778-081-003 and 778-081-001); and,

WHEREAS on May 11, 2022, the City Council of the City of Coachella held a duly
noticed public hearing and approved Conditional Use Permit No. 251 and Architectural Review
No. 22-04 and adopted Ordinance No. 1193 for Change of Zone No. 22-01 on May 25, 2022;
and

WHEREAS on October 26, 2022, the Planning Commission of the City of Coachella
held a duly noticed public hearing regarding proposed amendments in the subject application,
considered written and oral comments, and facts and evidence presented by the applicant, City
staff, and other interested parties; and

WHEREAS the proposed use is necessary or desirable for the development of the
community, is consistent with the objectives of the City’s General Plan, and is not detrimental
to the existing uses or the uses specifically permitted in the zone in which the proposed use is to
be located; and,

WHEREAS the proposed site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the
proposed development; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Division completed an initial environmental assessment of
the above matter and in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
recommends the Planning Commission determine the project is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15332 as an infill
development because the project involves development on a site under five acres where the
parcel complies with General Plan policies and zoning regulations, and where the project site
has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species, and where the site can be
adequately served by all required utilities and public services, and the project will not result in
any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality.

WHEREAS the conditions as stipulated by the City are necessary to protect the public

39




health, safety and welfare of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of the City
of Coachella, California hereby resolve as follows:

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals

The Planning Commission hereby finds that all of the facts in the Recitals are true and correct
and are incorporated and adopted as findings of the Planning Commission as fully set forth in this
resolution.

Section 2. CEQA Findings

Based upon its review of the entire record, including the Staff Report, any public comments or
testimony presented to the Planning Commission, and the facts outlined below, the Planning
Commission hereby finds and determines that the proposed project is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15332 as an infill
development because the project involves development on a site under five acres where the parcel
complies with General Plan policies and zoning regulations, and where the project site has no
value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species, and where the site can be adequately
served by all required utilities and public services, and the project will not result in any significant
effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality. The subject site is surrounded on all
sides by urban uses and has no suitable habitat for endangered species. There are existing utilities
and public services available to serve the site. As proposed, the project will comply with General
Plan policies and zoning code regulations and the project does not result in any significant traffic,
air quality, or water quality impacts. As such, no additional environmental review is required.

Section 3.  Conditional Use Permit and Architectural Review Findings

With respect to Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 351 and Architectural Review 22-04, the Planning
Commission finds as follows for the proposed for the 108 unit mixed-use development project:

1. The Conditional Use Permit and Architectural Review is consistent with the goals,
objectives, policies, and implementation measures of the Coachella General Plan 2035. The
site has a Downtown Center land use designation that allows for a range of retail uses. The
proposed uses on the site are in keeping with the policies of the Downtown Center land use
classification and the Project is internally consistent with other General Plan policies that
allows for multi-family residential development. The proposed structures on the site are in
keeping with the policies of the Downtown Center land use classification and the project is
internally consistent with other General Plan and the Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan
policies for this type of development. The project is consistent with the policies of the Land
Use and Community Character's Sub-Area #2 policies which recognize that Downtown is
the heart of the City where mixed use development is also encouraged that create a new
gateway to downtown at the intersection of Sixth Street and Cesar Chavez Street.

2. The proposed uses will be located, designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to
be compatible with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and shall not
change the essential character of the same area. The proposed project is in compliance with

Resolution PC2022-10
Page 2

Item 3.

40




Item 3.

the applicable development standards for the C-G (General Commercial) Zoning District of
the City's Zoning Code and the project request modified development standards through
approval of a planned unit development overlay to allow for a mixed-use development
consistent with the density permitted of the General Plan of 20-65 dwelling units per acre and
consistent with the Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan.

3. Consideration is given to harmony in scale, bulk, coverage and density, to the availability of
public facilities and utilities, to harmful effect, if any, upon desirable neighborhood
character, to the generation of traffic and the capacity of surrounding streets, and to any
other relevant impact of the development. The proposed project is in compliance with the
applicable development standards for the C-G (General Commercial) Zoning District of the
City's Zoning Code. The proposed development consists a 108 apartment units and 2 retail
spaces. The proposed uses will be compatible with existing adjacent uses that include single
family residential, multi-family uses, and commercial uses within the immediate vicinity.

4. The Project will be compatible with neighboring properties with respect to land development
patterns. The proposed development would develop according to the development standards
of the C-G Zone at a scale, massing, and aesthetic appeal of existing development is in
keeping with development of neighboring properties such as Pueblo Viejo Villas. The plans
submitted for this project propose a commercial and multi-family residential use with
amenities for the future residents of the site that are permitted in the C-G PD (General
Commercial, Planned Development) zone. The project would promote a well-designed
pedestrian realm that includes shade and a safe pedestrian environment for pedestrians.

5. The proposed use will include three new vehicular approaches to the property designed to
improve off-site and on-site vehicular circulation for existing traffic on surrounding public
streets or roads. Evidence of this is reflected in the provided site plan design. The three new
proposed drive aisles and internal circulation have been reviewed and approved by the Fire
Department and the Engineering Department.

Section 5. Planning Commission Approval

Based on the foregoing recitals and findings above, and the written and oral comments, facts
and evidence presented, the City of Coachella Planning Commission hereby recommends to the
City Council approval Conditional Use Permit (CUP 351), and Architectural Review 22-04 for
the Tripoli Mixed-Use Project development and subject to the Conditions of Approval as set forth
in “Exhibit A and Planned Unit Development Guidelines/Standards for the Tripoli Mixed-Use
project in “Exhibit B.”

PASSED APPROVED and ADOPTED this 26" day of October 2022.

Stephanie Virgen, Chairperson
Coachella Planning Commission

Resolution No. PC2022-24

Page 3 n




ATTEST:

Gabriel Perez
Planning Commission Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carlos Campos
City Attorney

Resolution PC2022-10
Page 4

Item 3.

42




| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. PC2022-24, was duly
adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Coachella,
California, held on the 26" day of October 2022, by the following roll call vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gabriel Perez
Planning Commission Secretary

Item 3.

43




Resolution No. PC 2022-24

(Changes to conditions of approval include new language in BOLD and removed language in

Attachment 1

Exhibit A - Resolution No. PC2022-24
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 351, ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW NO. 22-04
TRIPOLI MIXED-USE PROJECT

strike out)

General Conditions

1.

Conditional Use Permit No. 351 and Architectural Review 22-04 shall be valid for 12 months
from the effective date of said Planning Commission approvals unless the applicant requests
an extension of time and granted by the Planning Commission. The conditional use permit
shall expire and shall become void one year following the date on which the conditional use
became effective, unless prior to the expiration of one year a building permit is issued and
construction is commenced and diligently pursued toward completion, or a certificate of

occupancy is issued.

The applicant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Coachella, its
officials, officers, employees, and agents from and against any claim, action, or proceeding
against the City, its officials, officers, employees or agents to attack, set aside, void or annul
any project approval or condition of approval of the city concerning this project, including
but not limited to any approval or condition of approval or mitigation measure imposed
by the City Council or Planning Commission. The City shall promptly notify the applicant
of any claim, action, or proceeding concerning the project and the City shall cooperate fully
in the defense of the matter. The City reserves the right, at its own option, to choose its
own attorney to represent the City, its officials, officers, employees and agents in the
defense of the City Attorney, within five days of the effective date of this approval.

Within five business days of project approval, the applicant shall submit to the Planning
Division a check made payable to the County of Riverside in the amount of $50 forfiling
the CEQA Notice. (City of Coachella submitted this documentation).

All plans, as shown, are considered “conceptual,” subject to revisions as called out by the
conditions of this resolution. The plans shall not be stamp-approved until all conditions
requesting revisions have been satisfied during the building plan check process. Any
substantial changes to the plans, including changes shown on future building permit plans
deemed by Staff to not be within substantial conformance with this approval, will require
an amendment to the approval of the conditional use permit or architectural review. (City
to provide Application and /or Fees)

All plan submittals are the responsibility of the developer; this includes plan submittals
to the City of Coachella, the Riverside County Fire Department or to other agencies for
whom plan review and approval isrequired.

The working drawings shall include within the first four pages a list of all conditions of
approval included in this resolution.

EXHIBIT A

Item 3.

44



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 1


Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

10.

11.

12.

13.

Add electric vehicle infrastructure within the project site and at improved on-street
parking areas per CBC and State requirements.

Add 2 on-site parking spaces for van pools.

The applicant shall work with staff to accommodate an elevator for Building A if
financing for elevator and supporting infrastructure can be identified and incorporated
within the development timeframe for the project.

The applicant or successor in interest shall annex the subject property into the City's
Community Facilities District (CFD 2005-1) for City police, fire and paramedic services,
prior to issuance of a building permit for the first phase of construction.

The applicant or successor in interest shall install "purple pipe" for a future tertiary water
distribution system that would serve the irrigation needs of all common areas of the project
including perimeter landscaping, entry features and median island planters, and retention
basins, subject to review and approval by the City Engineer. The "purple pipe" water lines
shall be installed along the entire Avenue 48 street frontage according to City standards.

Provide secure bicycle parking and storage for apartment tenants and guests (General Plan
Community Health and Wellness Element Goal 5).

The project shall comply with all applicable codes, laws and regulations, regardless of
whether they are listed in these conditions. This includes conformance with the requirements
of the adopted U.B.C., U.P.C., U.M.C., N.E.C., including all requirements of the South Coast
Air Quality Management District, the Riverside County Fire Department and any
requirements by any other agency having jurisdiction on the project.

14.

Applicant shall work with City on a potential location for the City’s Art in Public Places
program that may include decorative, ornamental or architectural elements commissioned
from an artist as an integral aspect of the project structure or site.

Architectural Design, Character and Massing

15. All first floor dwelling units shall have a front door accessible from the Bagdad Avenue,

Tripoli Street and Cesar Chavez Street sidewalk areas, with a fenced and patio enclosure
adjacent to the sidewalk.

Item 3.

45




Item 3.

Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

16. A lighting exhibit shall be provided for landscape areas and external building lighting.
External building lighting shall be decorative in design and be consistent with Spanish
Architectural Revival design to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

17. Retail ceiling height shall be approximately 15 feet consistent with Pueblo Viejo
Revitalization Plan Guidelines.

18. First floor residential level shall be 3 feet above sidewalk level for privacy consistent with
the Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan Guidelines.

19. The applicant shall work with the Development Services Director on project architectural
design modifications prior to building permit submittal that include:

b. Ensurlng sufﬂment wmdow recesses. Proposed foam enhancements around
window areas may be removed with sufficient window recesses.
c. If window shutters are used they should be sage green or blue in color
similar to original elevation design.
d. Painting window edges colors consistent with Spanish Colonial Revival design.
e. Corner towers for building A and B shall be modified as follows:
ii. Balance the design of tower areas between the top of the retail space and
bottom of roof cornice trim.
iii. Consider a more ridged decorative cornice trim to create more shadows
similar to the top of the proposed retail floor.
iv. Include an enhanced decorative balcony structure at each tower that
provides visual focal point from Cesar Chavez Street and 6" Street.

f. Utilize an alternate color banding at the building base such as terracota color.
g. Awnings shall be designed and constructed to support a catenary curve common
with Spanish Colonlal Rewval de3|gn to also Increase window visibility.

j. Massing on walls between retail windows shall be wider consistent with the
original project design and windows for retail shall be recessed similar to
original design.

k. Increase use of divided lites on windows consistent with Spanish Colonial
Revival design

I. Utilize a similar tower feature on the north end of Building B along Cesar
Chavez to original approved elevation drawing.

m. Move pronounced tower feature on Building B completely to the corner of
Cesar Chavez Street and Bagdad Avenue.

20. Utilize two piece clay tile roofing with booster tiles on the edges and random mortar
packing. The mortar shall packed on 100 percent of the tiles in the first two rows of tiles
and along any rake and ridgeline, and packed on 25 percent of the tiles on the remaining

46




Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

21.

22.

23.

24,

field. Mortar packing shall serve as a bird stop at roof edges, The volume of mortar pack
to achieve the appropriate thickness shall be equivalent to a 6 inch diameter sphere of
mortar applied to reach tile. If the aforementioned roof treatment consistent with
Spanish Colonial Revival is demonstrated to be infeasible for the development, the
applicant shall propose roofing provides the appearance of Spanish Colonial Revival
architecture as demonstrated with boosted roof tiles and mortar packing at roof
edges, roof ridges and at boosted tiles to the satisfaction of the Development Services
Director.

Stucco walls shall consist of 'steel, hand trowel’, smooth Mission finish and slight
undulations (applied during brown coat) and bull-nose corners and edges.

All roof mounted mechanical equipment shall be view obscured by a parapet wall greater
in height than the equipment installed. Ground mounted mechanical equipment shall be
view obscured by landscaping or enclosure. Roof Top Unit (RTU) screens shall not satisfy
this condition for roof mounted equipment screening.

Trash enclosures installed for the project shall be compatible architecturally with the
building. The enclosure shall be constructed to Burrtec Waste Management Standards and

an open trellis shall be incorporated on all three proposed trash enclosures.

The sign program shall be revised so that cabinet type signs are permitted only as secondary
to the individual channel letters advertising a business and that raceway signs are prohibited.

Public Realm/Streetscape

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

The sidewalks along Cesar Chavez Street shall be expanded to provide access into the
ground floor units with an urban character, and reduced perimeter planter areas adjacent
to the building edge.

Planters with tree grates shall be installed every 17-25 feet and planted with shade trees
adjacent to the Cesar Chavez Street to create a separation between the street and pedestrian
traffic to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and Development Services Director.

Incorporate a minimum 10 foot wide sidewalk along the Bagdad Avenue frontage of the
retail space of building B.

Expand hardscape are at the right edge of the pedestrian apron on the corner of Bagdad
Avenue and Cesar Chavez Street to enhance the pedestrian experience.

Incorporate pavers or alternative decorative paving at vehicle entrances at Bagdad Avenue
and Tripoli Way consistent with the Pueblo Viejo design theme.

Reduce landscape areas directly at the sides of the retail space at Building A and replace
with decorative hardscape to accommodate outdoor seating and public engagement areas.

General - Engineering

31. A focused Traffic Analysis (TA) shall be prepared for the project by an appropriately licensed

Item 3.

47




Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

professional engineer. Prior to the preparation of the TA, the engineer shall submit a scoping
letter for the TA for the City Engineer’s approval. The TA shall include but not limited to
identification of trip generation, traffic distribution and impact on existing transportation
facilities and at time of General Plan build-out, all relevant, ingress and egress movements,
lines of sight, queuing analysis, and alignment studies (preliminary signing and striping plan).
Applicant shall obtain approval of site access and circulation from the Fire Marshall.

A preliminary soils report shall be prepared for the project by an appropriately licensed
professional engineer. At a minimum, the soils report shall provide specific analyses and
recommendations for grading, pavement structural sections, and infiltration.

A comprehensive drainage report, prepared by California Registered Civil Engineer, shall be
submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer prior to issuance of any permits. The
report shall contain pre- and post-development hydrology maps showing on-site and off-site
tributary drainage areas and shall be prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Riverside County Flood Control District. Adequate provisions shall be made to accept and
conduct the existing tributary drainage flows around or through the site in a manner which
will not adversely affect adjacent or downstream properties. If the design of the project
includes a retention basin, it shall be sized to contain the runoff resulting from a 10-year storm
event and the runoff from a 100-year storm event shall be contained within basin with shallow
ponding (3.5 max.). The basin shall be designed to evacuate a 10-year storm event within 72
hours. The size of the retention basin(s) shall be determined by the hydrology report and be
approved by the City Engineer. Retention basin shall be provided with a minimum of 2.00
feet sandy soil if determined to contain silt or clay materials. Maximum allowable percolation
rate for design shall be 10 gal./s.f./day unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. A
percolation test for this site is required to be submitted. A combination drywell vertical drain
field shall be constructed at all points where runoff enters the retention basin. Drywell &
vertical drain field design shall be based on soils borings made at the proposed drywell
locations after the retention basins have been rough graded. Minimum depth shall be 45-feet.
A log that includes sieve analysis for each strata of the borings shall be submitted to the City
Engineer for confirmation of depth of the vertical drain fields. Underground retention under
the proposed parking area will be considered as an alternative to surface retention subject to
the approval of the City Engineer.

Prepare and record necessary drainage easements to implement the project in accordance with
drainage law.

A storm water quality management plan shall be prepared for the project by California
Registered Civil Engineer in compliance with NPDES and State Water Quality Control Board
regulations. The project shall be designed to specify preferential use of Low Impact
Development Best Management Practices that reduce pollutants and runoff volume.

Applicant shall comply with the valley wide NPDES permit requirements including but not
limited to submittal of a WQMP for plan review accompanied by a $3,000 plan check deposit
for approval including executed maintenance agreement. All unused plan check fees will be
refunded to the applicant upon approval of the Final WQMP.

The developer shall submit a Fugitive Dust Control and Erosion Control plan in accordance
with Guidelines set forth by CMC and SCAQMD to maintain wind and drainage erosionand

Item 3.

48




Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

37.

dust control for all areas disturbed by grading. Exact method(s) of such control shall be subject
to review and approval by the City Engineer. No sediment is to leave the site. Additional
securities, in bond form, in amount of $2,000.00 per acre of gross area, and a one- time cash
deposit of $2,000.00 are required to insure compliance with this requirement. No work may
be started on or off site unless the PM-10 plan has been approved, the original plans, and
executed dust control agreement, are filed in the engineering department at the City of
Coachella.

Applicant shall submit for review and approval by the City Engineer all documents related to
any existing and proposed on-site and off-site easements that may affect the development of
the site. All easements shall be identified on the engineering plans.

Item 3.

49




Item 3.

Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

38. Site access improvements shall be in conformance with the requirements of Title 24 of the
California Administrative Code. This shall include access ramps for off-site and on-site streets
as required.

39. Applicant shall obtain approval of site access and circulation from Fire Marshall.

40. The applicant shall provide necessary utility easements for 11D and underground overhead
distribution lines within the project boundaries. Applicant shall submit to the City a letter
from 11D that satisfies this requirement.

41. The applicant shall pay all necessary plan check, permit and inspection fees. Fees will be
determined when plans are submitted to the City Engineering Department for plan check.

ROUGH GRADING:
42. Prepare and submit rough grading and erosion control plans for the project.
43. The project’s soils engineer shall certify to the adequacy of the grading plan.

44. All projects developing one (1) acre or more of total land area, or which are part of a larger
phased development that will disturb one acre of land, are required to obtain coverage under
the State Water Resources Control Board’s (SWRCB) General Permit for storm water
discharges associated with construction activity. Proof of filing a Notice of Intent (NOI) with
the SWRCB for coverage under this permit is required. The Waste Discharger’s Identification
Number (WDID), issued by the SWRCB, must be shown on the grading plans. The project’s
Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan shall be submitted for the City’s review and approval.

PRECISE GRADING:

45. A precise grading/improvement plan, prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer,
showing building footprints, pad elevations, finished grades, drainage routes, retaining walls,
erosion control, slope easements, and all other pertinent information shall be submitted for
review and approval by the City Engineer.

46. Rough grading shall be certified by the project soils engineer prior to issuance of a permit for
precise grading or building construction.

47. Provide and record a reciprocal use and maintenance agreement to assure common ingress
and egress and joint maintenance of all common access, parking areas and drives.

48. If applicant is planning to build a wall, separate permits shall be required for wall construction.
The maximum height of any wall shall be limited to six (6) feet as measured from an average
of the ground elevations on either side.

STREET IMPROVEMENTS:

49. Street improvement plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall be
submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer. All street improvements including

50




Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

street lights shall be designed and constructed in conformance with City Municipal Code,
General Plan, and Standards and Specifications. Street flow line grade shall have aminimum
slope of 0.35 %.

50. Applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site improvements including street pavement,
curb, gutter, sidewalk, street trees, perimeter walls, perimeter landscaping and irrigation,
storm drain, street lights, and any other incidental works necessary to complete the
improvements. Driveways shall conform to City of Coachella standards for commercial
driveways with a minimum width of 24.00 feet and curbed radius entrances.

51. Applicant shall construct and dedicate the following streets and street improvements to
conform to the General Plan and/or requirements of Traffic Study.

1) Tripoli Way- Public Roadway as shown on the RAC and per these comments shall
include the following:

a.

This street is within Pueblo Viejo District Limit with 33.17 feet of right-of-way from
Center Line of Street to the West side of the Street. If street widening is included in
the project design for street side parking, then additional right-of-way shall be
dedicated such that all public parking and public sidewalks are located within
dedicated public right-of-way.

Applicant shall install all sidewalk and curb and gutter transitions to uniformly
connect to existing adjacent improvements and coordinate installation and/or
relocation of fire hydrants, water meters, storm drain, wells, street lights and all other
appurtenances by Pueblo Viejo Design Guidelines as required to the satisfaction of
the City Engineer.

Applicant shall construct all appurtenant roadway components on west side of Tripoli
Way between 6" Street and Bagdad Avenue such as, but not limited to: curb and
gutter, sidewalk, Landscaping, Decorative pavers Elements, Decorative Street Lights,
ADA ramps, Traffic control striping, legends, Traffic control signs and street name
signs to match Downtown Pueblo Viejo Design Guidelines and to the satisfaction of
the City Engineer.

Applicant shall underground all existing dry utilities at southbound lane on Tripoli
Way Between 6" Street and Bagdad Avenue such as, but not limited to: power poles,
telecommunication poles and all other existing dry utilities to the satisfaction of the
City Engineer.

2) 61 Street- Public Roadway as shown on the RAC and per these comments shall include
the following:

a.

b.

This street is within Pueblo Viejo District Limit with 75 feet of right-of-way.

Applicant shall install all sidewalk and curb and gutter transitions to uniformly
connect to existing adjacent improvements and coordinate installation and/or
relocation of fire hydrants, water meters, storm drain, wells, street lights and all other

Item 3.

51




Item 3.

Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

appurtenances by Pueblo Viejo Design Guidelines as required to the satisfaction of
the City Engineer.

c. Applicant shall construct all appurtenant roadway components on South side of 6%
Street between Cesar Chavez Street and Palm Avenue such as, but not limited to:
curb and gutter, sidewalk, Landscaping, Decorative pavers Elements, Decorative
Street Lights, ADA ramps, Traffic control striping, legends, Traffic control signs and
street name signs to match Downtown Pueblo Viejo Design Guidelines and to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

d. Applicant shall underground all existing dry utilities at eastbound lane on 6" Street
between Cesar Chavez Street and Tripoli Way such as, but not limited to: power
poles, telecommunication poles and all other existing dry utilities to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer.

e. Applicant shall improve Intersection at the Northeast and southeast corners of 6%
street and Cesar Chavez Street including new ADA ramps, Decorative Crosswalk,
Traffic Signal modification (if required), Striping and Landscaping by Pueblo Viejo
Design Guidelines and to the Satisfaction of the City Engineer.

f. 6" Street improvement plans and specifications shall be provided by the City of
Coachella to the project applicant and shall include clearly delineated improvements
described as Phase 11 of the ST-130 Pueblo Viejo Sustainable Transportation Project.
The City of Coachella shall complete all improvements identified as Phase | and the
project applicant shall complete all improvements identified as phase I, which are
generally described above, to complete the 6" Street urban corridor improvements.

g. Include diagonal parking along 6™ Street to serve project retail units at the
direction of the City Engineer. The City Engineer may eliminate the need for
diagonal parking if demonstrated by the applicant to be infeasible.

3) Bagdad Avenue- Public Roadway as shown on the RAC and per these comments shall
include the following:

a. This street is within Pueblo Viejo District Limit with 30 feet of right-of-way. If street
widening is included in the project design for street side parking, then additional
right-of-way shall be dedicated such that all public parking and public sidewalks are
located within dedicated public right-of-way.

b. Applicant shall install all sidewalk and curb and gutter transitions to uniformly
connect to existing adjacent improvements and coordinate installation and/or
relocation of fire hydrants, water meters, storm drain, wells, street lights and all other
appurtenances by Pueblo Viejo Design Guidelines as required to the satisfaction of
the City Engineer.

c. Applicant shall construct all appurtenant roadway components on the North side of
Bagdad Avenue between Cesar Chavez Street and Tripoli Way such as, but not
limited to: curb and gutter, sidewalk, Landscaping, Decorative pavers Elements,
Decorative Street Lights, ADA ramps, Traffic control striping, legends, Traffic
control signs and street name signs to match Downtown Pueblo Viejo Design

Guidelines and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. Improvements shall include -




Item 3.

Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

replacement of the existing ADA ramp at the northeast corner of Cesar Chavez and
Bagdad Avenue.

d. Applicant shall underground all existing dry utilities at westbound lane on Bagdad
Avenue between Cesar Chavez Street and Tripoli Way such as, but not limited to:
power poles, telecommunication poles and all other existing dry utilities to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

SEWER and WATER IMPROVEMENTS:

52. Sewer & Water Improvement Plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall
be submitted for engineering plan check and City Engineer approval.

53. Applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site water improvements and any other incidental
works necessary to complete the improvements. Size and location of sewer and water
improvements shall be approved by the City Engineer.

PRIORTO | ANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS:

54. A final soils report, compaction report and rough grading certificate shall be submitted and
approved prior to issuance of any building permits.

55. Provide a set of proposed Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R) for review and
approval. The proposed CC&Rs shall contain the Association’s/Owner’s maintenance
obligations with respect to various facilities including, but not limited to, right-of-way and
private landscaping, private streets, sidewalks, utilities, street lights, and Water Quality
Management Plan (WQMP) features. The City of Coachella shall be listed as an express
third party beneficiary and be reviewed and approved by the City Attorney’s office prior to
recordation. This document must be submitted to and approved by the City before it is
submitted to any other governmental entity.

56. Prior to issuance of building permits, all required public improvements, including landscaping
and lighting of the retention basins, and landscaped areas along the exterior streets, shall be
completed or secured with appropriate sureties to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. An
engineering final inspection is required. "As-built" plans shall be submitted to and approved
by the City Engineer. Prior to acceptance of the improvements by the City, such plans, once
approved, shall be given to the city on compact disk in AutoCad format. All off-site and on-
site improvements shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to
acceptance of improvements for maintenance by the City.

57. The applicant’s Civil Engineer shall field verify and certify that all BMPs are designed,
constructed, and functional in accordance with the approved WQMP.

PRIOR TO RELEASE OF OCCUPANCY PERMITS/ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS:

58. Prior to issuance of certificate of occupancy, all public improvements, including landscaping
and lighting of the retention basins, and landscaped areas along the exterior streets, shall be

53




Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

Lan

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. An engineering final inspection is required.
"As-built” plans shall be submitted to and approved by the City Engineer. Prior to acceptance
of the improvements by the City, such plans, once approved, shall be given to the city on
compact disk in AutoCad format. All off-site and on-site improvements shall be completed to
the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to acceptance of improvements for maintenance by
the City.

in

Final landscaping and irrigation plans shall be submitted to the Development Services
Department for review and approval. Said plans shall conform to the landscaping plan
submitted as part of the subject Architectural Review, and as conditioned herein. Landscape
lighting shall be incorporated. All landscape materials shall be identified on a legend and
identified graphically on a landscape plan including planting counts, tree caliper, and planted
tree heights.

Landscaping and irrigation shall be provided in accordance with Section 17.54.010(J) of the
Municipal Code and in accordance with the State Model Water Efficient Landscape
Ordinance (AB 1881). Water budget calculations, including the Maximum Applied Water
Allowance (MAWA) and Estimated Total Water Use (ETWU) shall be provided as part of
the landscaping and irrigation plan.

The proposed landscape shall be in conformance with the City's Landscape Development
Guidelines and should include water-efficient plantings as encouraged for the commercial
development. A detailed landscape and irrigation plan shall be submitted that addresses
landscape requirements for the project site. All landscaping shall fulfill the general
requirements of the Coachella Municipal Code Chapter 17.54 as follows:

a. Internal landscaping equal to a minimum of five percent 5% of the parking area and
driveway area is required and shall be distributed throughout the parking area.

b. All landscape planter beds in interior parking areas shall be not less than five (5) feet
in width and bordered by a concrete curb not less than six (6) inches nor more than
eight (8) inches in height adjacent to the parking surface. The landscaped planter
along the north side of the drive-thru lane shall be a minimum of five feet in width.

c. Where a drive aisle abuts the side of a parking space a landscaped planter shall
separate the parking space from the drive aisle.

d. At least one (1) fifteen (15) gallon tree shall be provided within the parking area for
every ten (10) parking spaces, with size, height and species acceptable to staff.

e. All internal landscape planters shall have permanent and automatic sprinkler or drip
irrigation systems.

The landscape plan shall be revised to accommodate usable areas at the west side of Building
A for residents and the customers of the retail space that allow for greater visibility and
consistent with the Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan goals for common use spaces. Plant
trees in grates on east and west sides of Building A retail space.

The Planning Division may request minor substitutions of plant materials or request
additional sizing or quantity of materials during plan check.

Item 3.

54




Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

64.

65.

66.

The applicant shall submit, and must obtain approval from the Development Services
Director, a letter from a registered landscape architect confirming that landscaping and
irrigation have been installed in accordance with the approved plans prior to issuance of a
certificate of occupancy. Any damaged, dead or decayed landscaping landscape areas within
the remainder of the commercial center shall be replaced per approved landscape plans upon
landscape inspection by the Development Services Department and prior to issuance of a
certificate of occupancy.

The site landscaping shall be maintained in good condition at all times, and the owner or
operator of the facility shall be responsible for replacing any damaged, dead or decayed
landscaping as soon as practicable, and in accordance with the approved landscape plan. The
applicant shall enter into a landscape agreement with the City prior to issuance of a
certificate of occupancy to ensure that all proposed landscaping on-site and right-of-
way of the project frontage is maintained in a first class conditions.

Incorporate Hong Kong Orchid Tree for the parkway shade tree along Cesar Chavez Street
and use of California Fan Palm shall be replaced with Date Palm.

Coachella Valley Water District:

67.

Applicant must comply with Coachella Valley Water District regulations pertaining to
irrigation infrastructure protect-in-place practices, relocation or abandonment of
infrastructure, if needed.

Fire Department (chris.cox@fire.ca.qov)

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

Fire Hydrants and Fire Flow: Prior to the issuance of building permits, plans for the water
system shall be submitted to the fire department for review and approval. The water system
shall be capable of delivering the required fire flow. Based on the application, the largest
proposed building is 4500 square feet, assuming construction type VB, with fire sprinklers,
therefore the minimum required fire flow is 1000 gallons per minute at 20 psi for 2 hours.
Fire hydrant location and spacing shall comply with the fire code. An approved water supply
for fire protection during construction shall be made available prior to the arrival of
combustible materials on site. Reference 2019 California Fire Code (CFC) 507.5.1, 3312,
Appendices B and C.

Fire Department Access: Prior to building permit issuance, a fire access site plan shall be
approved. Approved vehicle access, either permanent or temporary, shall be provided during
construction. CFC 503.1.1, 3310.1 and 503.2.1

Requests for installation of traffic calming designs/devices on fire apparatus access roads
shall be submitted and approved by the Office of the Fire Marshal. Ref. CFC 503.4.1

Phased Construction Access: If construction is phased, each phase shall provide approved
access for fire protection prior to any construction. Ref. CFC 503.1

Construction Permits: Building construction plans and fuel dispensing plans shall be
submitted to the Office of the Fire Marshal for review and approval. Final conditions will be

Item 3.

55



mailto:chris.cox@fire.ca.gov

Item 3.

Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

addressed when these plans are reviewed. A copy of the fuel dispensing plans, approved by
Riverside County Environmental Health Department, shall be provided to the Office of the
Fire Marshal prior to permit issuance.

73. Fire Sprinkler System: All new commercial structures 3,600 square feet or larger shall be
protected with a fire sprinkler system. Ref CFC 903.2 as amended by the City of Coachella.

74. Fire sprinkler system riser shall not be obstructed in any manner. If a system riser is to be
concealed by means of a wall, soffit, column, or other building construction, it shall be
provided with eighteen (18) inch clearance to each side and to the front of the system riser.
Access shall be provided by means of a door with the minimum dimensions two (2) feet six
(6) inches in width by six (6) feet eight (8) inches in height from the exterior of the building
directly to the riser as approved by the fire code official Ref. RVC Fire 1B 06-07.

75. Fire Alarm and Detection System: A water flow monitoring system and/or fire alarm system
may be required and determined at time of building plan review. Ref. CFC 903.4, CFC 907.2
and NFPA 72

76. Knox Box and Gate Access: Buildings shall be provided with a Knox Box. The Knox Box
shall be installed in an accessible location approved by the Office of the Fire Marshal. Gates
installed across access walkways and maintained locked shall be provided with approved
Knox equipment. Electric gate operators shall be provided with Knox key switches. Electric
gate operators shall also be connected to a remote signal receiver compatible for use with the
preemption devices on the Riverside County fire apparatus. The gate shall automatically open
upon receiving a remote signaled form the fire apparatus and remain in the fully open
position for a minimum of 20 seconds. Ref. CFC 506.1

77. Addressing: All commercial buildings shall display street numbers in a prominent location

on the street side of the premises and additional locations as required. Ref. CFC 505.1 and
County of Riverside Office of the Fire Marshal Standard #07-01

Environmental Compliance:

78. Submit water and sewer plans for approval from Utilities Manager- project required to
connect to City public sewer and water system.

79. The project will require a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP)

80. Project will be required to install 4G Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) meters at the
residential services.

81. Backflow devices are required on irrigation meters and all non-residential meters.

82. Water service line Type K Soft Copper Tubing Polywrap-C Blue (6Mil, use applicable size)

56




Resolution No. PC 2022-24 EXHIBIT A

83. Prior to acceptance of the first set of plan check, the developer.engineer must submit to the
City of Coachella hydraulic model and relevant information clearing fire flow requirements,.
The developer will be responsible for needed improvements as determined by the hydraulic
model.

Code Enforcement

84. Applicant shall maintain fencing and windscreen that-is adequately secured and braced to
the satisfaction of the Code Enforcement Manager shal-be-censtructed-within2-menthsof
projectapproval-to deter vandalism and dumping that is regularly occurring on the property
prior to construction.

Item 3.

57




Attachment 1

TRIPOLI - AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

CiTY OF COACHELLA
TRIPOLI - AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

DESIGN GUIDELINES

APPLICANT:
TriPOLI CIC, LP
6339PAsSEO DEL LAGO
CaArLsBAD, CA 92011
CONTACT: DAvVIDDAVIS
760-456-6000

JURISDICTION:
CITY OF COACHELLA
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
1515 SIXTHSTREET
COACHELLA, CA 92236
CONTACT: Luis LoPEZ
760-398-3002

PREPARED BY.
TriPOLI CIC, LP
6339PASEO DEL LAGO
CaArLsBAD, CA 92011
CONTACT: DAVIDDAVIS
760-456-6000

Item 3.

58



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 1


TRIPOLI - AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

Item 3.

59




TRIPOLI - AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

Item 3.

60




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Item 3.

INTRODUCTION

These Design Guidelines are required pursuant to the City of Coachella C-
G PUD (General Commercial, Planned Unit Development). This Overlay
Zone will provide for a mixed-use development for up to 108 apartments
with approximately 3,000 square feet of ground floor commercial uses and
urban open space.

The purpose of these Design Guidelines and Development Standards are
to provide guidance for development, construction, new buildings, building
additions, site work and landscaping. These guidelines will be used in
addition to the zoning in establishing permitted uses, activities and
development standards.

These guidelines may be amended from time to time. It is the owner’'s
responsibility to be sure they have current Guidelines and have reviewed
all applicable sections, ordinances or regulations that may affect any
improvements.

The illustrations, photos and exhibits in this document are intended to
convey a concept, not detailed construction drawings for construction. The
intent of these guidelines are to provide a framework for preparing
construction drawings for approval.

In the event of a conflict between these guidelines and any local, state or
federal building and zoning codes. The jurisdictional approved documents
shall govern.

61




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS Item 3.

DESIGN GUIDELINES

Il. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed project consists of a mixed-use development on vacant land
located on 2.79 acres. The site is in the City of Coachella within a Planned
Development (PD) Overlay Zone for a future mixed-use building. The
residential affordable apartments will consist of 108 units including thirty
(30) three-bedroom, fifty-one (51) two-bedroom and twenty-seven (27)
one-bedroom units for families. The project includes one (1) residential unit
for a fulltime onsite manager. The Commercial portion consist of two
commercial locations. Building A proposes to build 2,062 sf retail space and
will front onto 6™ Street. Building B proposes to build 1,984 sf of retail space
and will be located on the corner of Cesar Chavez and Bagdad Avenue.
Building A will be a 3-story structure of wood frame construction with no
elevators. Building B will be a 3-story structure of wood frame construction
and include elevators. The project will incorporate green strategies such as
low flow water fixtures and drought tolerant/native landscaping. The project
will be energy efficient and include solar for power generation. Onsite
social services provided to residents at no charge.

A 1,790 sf Community Meeting Room will serve the entire project and
include a computer lab, kitchen, and leasing office. Laundry facilities will be
located in each building. The project will include ADA accessibility and
hearing/visually impaired units.

The architectural style utilizes the latest design guidelines from the “Pueblo
Viejo Implementation Strategy Plan”. This will consist of private patios and
balconies along with tower elements.

A. C-G PUD (GENERAL COMMERCIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT)
OVERLAY ZONE)

I. Commercial

This intent of this zone is to provide for and encourage the orderly development
of commercial areas designed to serve the community-wide needs. Such areas
provide a wide variety of goods and services and must be consistent with the
overall development of the city and its environs. The provisions of this zone
intend to ensure that such commerce will be compatible with adjacent,
noncommercial development, and to minimize the undesirable effects of heavy
traffic, type of activity, and to set forth site requirements.

2. Residential

The purpose of this chapter is to provide for attractive, planned, residential
districts in accordance with the general plan; to provide a means of achieving
greater quality, variety and flexibility in residential development on relatively
large parcels of land; to encourage more imaginative and innovative design of

62




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

Item 3.

DESIGN GUIDELINES

projects; to promote more desirable living environments that would not be
possible through the strict application of zoning standards; to assist in the
development of old or blighted neighborhoods by providing incentives for higher
quality multiple residential housing and project design; to require a more efficient
use of open space, separation of pedestrian and vehicular traffic and increased
project amenities; to insure that such projects will be assets to their surrounding
neighborhoods, and safeguards will be required through the conditional use
procedure. The overall plan shall provide equivalent or higher standards of
development, operation, light, air, safety, convenience and aesthetics, than if
developed under the underlying zone.

63




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Item 3.

B. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

The following Property Development Standards shall apply. Dimensions
and standards are minimums, and minor variations may be permitted
subject to Planning Director review approval, providing the minimums
specified herein are maintained as average minimums.

Setbacks:

Front Setback

Zero (0) to ten (10) feet from
property line.

Minimum Building Height

Three (3) stories or forty (40) feet

Upper Floor Setbacks

Ten (10) foot front setback for
stories exceeding four (4) stories.

Allowed Residential Densities

Minimum twenty (2) D.U. per
acre/Maximum sexty-five (65) D.U.
per acre

Parking:

Residential: 0.5 per one-bedroom,
0.5 per two-bedroom, 0.5 per
three-bedroom. Guest parking 0%.

Retail/Commercial: 40% of 4/1000
sf.

On-Street parking that is within
500 hundred feet of the main
entrance of a development may be
utilized to satisfy the requirement
for off-street parking.

Unit Size:

1-bedroom 542 sf
2-bedroom 702 sf
3-bedroom 932 sf

Walls and Fences:

Walls and fences are subject to the regulations set forth in the City of
Coachella Zoning Ordinance. Fencing and wall design shall adhere to the
parameters described in these Design Guidelines and/or Codes, Covenants

and Restrictions.

64




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Item 3.

Apartment Development:

Conceptual Site Plan is depicted on Figure 1, Conceptual Floor Plans are
depicted on Figure 2, Conceptual Unit Plans are depicted on Figure 3 and
Conceptual Elevations are depicted on Figure 4.

Animal Keeping:
Consistent with an affordable type of community proposed, pets and animal
raising are not permitted.

65




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS Item 3.

DESIGN GUIDELINES

C. PARKING REGULATIONS

All off-street parking shall be in accordance with the regulations set forth by
the State of California Density Bonus Law. Parking areas shall be
landscaped in accordance with these Design Guidelines.

D. GENERAL GUIDELINES - PROJECT THEME

The project is designed as an 100% Affordable Apartment Project whereby
the natural character of the site and surroundings are integrated into the
community design (Figure 6 Landscape Concept Plan). A landscape theme
reminiscent of early California Heritage is used. Landscape themes on 6
Avenue will continue the current design associated with the adjacent Pueblo
Viejo Villas project and the DPSS building. The property features quality
commercial themes along the frontages of the community serving facilities
located on Cesar Chavez and 6" Street. The project will extend these
themes down Tripoli Way and Bagdad with angled parking with landscape
pockets. This project will benefit by the Sunline Transit Center which is
located on the southeast corner of 4th Street and Cesar Chavez.

E. PURPOSE AND INTENT

The purpose and intent of these Design Guidelines is to integrate
appropriate planning, architectural and landscape architectural elements
within the community and to guide the City of Coachella in the building of
the project. The intent of these guidelines is to establish an individual
identity, yet blend in with the overall community theme, as well as to blend
with the overall community character of Coachella.

These guidelines, together with the other sections of this document, provide
the basis of design consistency and serve as an instrument of approval by
the City of Coachella Planning Department. This document is used together
with the City of Coachella Zoning Ordinance, Building Codes and Planning
Regulations that may be amended from time to time. In addition, changes
may be made to these guidelines over the life of the project to further
enhance the community.

F. LANDSCAPE DESIGN GUIDELINES

To reinforce the character of the project, landscape design guidelines for
development is set forth in this section, compliment the qualities of the
natural environment and surrounding community character. The project
incorporates several development standards typical of rural desert
communities such as roads without sidewalks, trails and informal
landscaping. Public Roads designed to City standards, flow with the

66




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Item 3.

neighborhood and provide continuity. Streetscapes, as well as project
entries and key focal points entering the community emulate the character
through appropriate signage, landscaping and materials. The project
landscape palette complements the themes and character for the City of
Coachella.

Adherence to these guidelines helps ensure a quality living environment by
creating design continuity throughout the project.

The Landscape Design Guidelines consist of a written summary and
graphic exhibits that address the design of typical project elements. All
project entry monuments, street scenes, community edges, boundaries and
recreation amenities are delineated to further explain the personality of the
community. The objectives of the Landscape Design Guidelines are:

e To provide guidance in formulating precise development plans.

e To provide a guide for public agencies, builders, engineers, architects,
landscape architects, other professionals and homeowners.

e To provide the City of Coachella assurances that the project develops
in accordance with the quality and character proposed in this
document.

The Plant Material Guidelines section presents the overall community
landscape concept and plant material palette. Information relative to
seasonal planting constraints, climate constraints, planting installation,
irrigation installation and landscape maintenance are presented as an aid
to successful implementation.

67




Item 3.

AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

DESIGN GUIDELINES

Street Scenes

The street scene guidelines establish street hardscape, furniture, landscape
development, as well as a framework for consistency of design. All landscaping
construction drawings require approval of the City of Coachella Planning
Department.

Primary project Frontage is located along the Western Property Line. This
street scene development provides for community commercial elements
and serves as an introduction to the Commercial uses. The Cesar Chavez
street scene is designed to accommodate pedestrian uses and local traffic
from the apartments and Transit Center.

The street tree-planting concept for Cesar Chavez, features a row of trees
and sidewalk adjacent to the commercial activity. The area between the
sidewalk and residential units will be landscaped with desert planting and
decomposed granite. The area adjacent to commercial spaces shall be
enhance concrete which reflect a local natural appearance.

6" Street

This is a local road that has been enhance and is a primary access to the
City facilities. The intent is to encourage visitors to walk along shaded
walkways, trellis’'s and tree canopies. Elements to be included are
landscape planters, interlocking permeable pavers, bike racks, and street
trees in planters, benches, sidewalk opening, decorative roadway crossings
and trash receptacles.

inoli
This is a local road intended to complete the circulation between the existing
residential and commercial activity to the south to Bagdad Avenue. The
roadway has been design to accommodate angled parking which provides
character along with landscape pockets in an urban style to reduce traffic
speeds and provide for traffic calming. Additional traffic calming measure
may be required if undesirable conditions are determined.

Bagdad Avenue

This is a local road intended to connect eastern neighborhoods to Cesar
Chavez. The roadway has been design to accommodate angled parking
which provides character along with landscape pockets in an urban style to
reduce traffic speeds and provide for traffic calming.

68




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS Item 3.

DESIGN GUIDELINES

Lan Planting and Irrigation

Overall plant material selection for given project areas has compatible
drought resistant characteristics wherever possible. Irrigation programming
is designed to minimize water application for the entire landscape setting.
The limited plant material selections for common landscape areas are
contained in the following plant palettes. Plant material not listed may be
utilized provided it is appropriate to the intended community character, site
conditions and concerns for maintenance.

COMMUNITY PLANT PALLET

Botanical Name Common Name
Trees
Acacia Aneura Mulsa
Bauhinia x blakeana Hong Kong Orchid
Chilopsis L. ‘Timeless Beauty’ Desert Willow
Ebenopsis Ebano Texas Ebony
Ulmus Parvifolia ‘Drake’ Drake EIm
Phoenix Dactylifera Date Palm

Large Shrubs

Encelia Californica Brittlebush

Leucophylium Fruitescens Texas Ranger

Salvia Leucantha Mexican Bush Sage
Small Shrubs

Carex Tumulicola Foothill Sedge

Dalea Greggi Trailing Indigo Bush

Dasyliron Wheeleri Spoon Yucca

Festuca Glauca Elijah Blue

Nandina ‘Compacta’ Dwarf Nandina

Rosa x ‘Noare’ Carpet Rose

Stipa Tenuissima Mexican Feather Grass

Ground Cover
Decomposed Granite DG

69




Attachment 2
Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2022-48
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 351 251, ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW NO.
22-04 21-04 TRIPOLI MIXED-USE PROJECT

General Conditions

1. Conditional Use Permit No. 351 and Architectural Review 22-04 21-04 shall be valid for 12
months from the effective date of said City Council approvals unless the applicant requests
an extension of time and granted by the Planning Commission. The conditional use permit
shall expire and shall become void one year following the date on which the conditional use
became effective, unless prior to the expiration of one year a building permit is issued and
construction is commenced and diligently pursued toward completion, or a certificate of
occupancy is issued.

2. The applicant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Coachella, its
officials, officers, employees, and agents from and against any claim, action, or proceeding
against the City, its officials, officers, employees or agents to attack, set aside, void or annul
any project approval or condition of approval of the city concerning this project, including
but not limited to any approval or condition of approval or mitigation measure imposed
by the City Council or Planning Commission. The City shall promptly notify the applicant
of any claim, action, or proceeding concerning the project and the City shall cooperate fully
in the defense of the matter. The City reserves the right, at its own option, to choose its
own attorney to represent the City, its officials, officers, employees and agents in the
defense of the City Attorney, within five days of the effective date of this approval.

3. Within five business days of project approval, the applicant shall submit to the Planning
Division a check made payable to the County of Riverside in the amount of $50 forfiling
the CEQA Notice. (City of Coachella submitted this documentation).

4. All plans, as shown, are considered “conceptual,” subject to revisions as called out by the
conditions of this resolution. The plans shall not be stamp-approved until all conditions
requesting revisions have been satisfied during the building plan check process. Any
substantial changes to the plans, including changes shown on future building permit plans
deemed by Staff to not be within substantial conformance with this approval, will require
an amendment to the approval of the conditional use permit or architectural review. (City
to provide Application and /or Fees)

5. All plan submittals are the responsibility of the developer; this includes plan submittals
to the City of Coachella, the Riverside County Fire Department or to other agencies for
whom plan review and approval isrequired.

6. The working drawings shall include within the first four pages a list of all conditions of
approval included in this resolution.

Item 3.

70



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2


Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

10.

11.

12.

13.

15.

Add electric vehicle infrastructure within the project site and at improved on-street
parking areas per CBC and State requirements.

The appllcant shall weﬂewﬁh—staﬁ—te accommodate an elevator for BU|Id|ng AandB. #

The applicant or successor in interest shall annex the subject property into the City's
Community Facilities District (CFD 2005-1) for City police, fire and paramedic services,
prior to issuance of a building permit for the first phase of construction.

The applicant or successor in interest shall install "purple pipe" for a future tertiary water
distribution system that would serve the irrigation needs of all common areas of the project
including perimeter landscaping, entry features and median island planters, and retention

basms subject to review and approval by the Clty Englneer Ihe—p%pie—mpe—wa%er—ﬂnes

Provide secure bicycle parking and storage for apartment tenants and guests (General Plan
Community Health and Wellness Element Goal 5).

The project shall comply with all applicable codes, laws and regulations, regardless of
whether they are listed in these conditions. This includes conformance with the requirements
of the adopted U.B.C., U.P.C., U.M.C., N.E.C., including all requirements of the South Coast
Air Quality Management District, the Riverside County Fire Department and any
requirements by any other agency having jurisdiction on the project.

featu%es—maten&ls—and—sﬁeJaye%Repeat of Condltlon 4.

Applicant shall work with City on a potential location for the City’s Art in Public Places
program that may include decorative, ornamental or architectural elements commissioned
from an artist as an integral aspect of the project structure or site.

Architectural Design, Character and Massing
16. All first floor dwelling units facing the public streets shall have a rear patio gate frentdoer

accessible from the Bagdad Avenue, Tripoli Street and Cesar Chavez Street sidewalk

areas-with-a-fenced and patio enclosure.-adjacentto-the-sidewalk:

Item 3.

71




Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBITA | ™%

17. A lighting exhibit shall be provided for landscape areas and external building lighting.
External building lighting shall be decorative in design and be consistent with Spanish
Architectural Revival design to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

18. Retail ceiling height shall be approximately 9° 15 feet consistent with Pueblo Viejo
Revitalization Plan Guidelines.

20. The applicant shall work with the Development Services Director on project architectural
design modifications prior to building permit submittal.-that-trelude:

23. All roof mounted mechanical equipment shall be view obscured by a parapet wall greater in
height than the equipment installed. Ground mounted mechanical equipment shall be view
obscured by landscaping or enclosure. Roof Top Unit (RTU) screens shall not satisfy this

72




Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

24.

25.

condition for roof mounted equipment screening.

Trash enclosures installed for the project shall be compatible architecturally with the
building. The enclosure shall be constructed to Burrtec Waste Management Standards and
an open trellis shall be incorporated on all three proposed trash enclosures.

The sign program shall be revised so that cabinet type signs are permitted only as secondary
to the individual channel letters advertising a business and that raceway signs are prohibited.

Public Realm/Streetscape

26.

The sidewalks along Cesar Chavez Street shall be expanded to provide access and seating
into the ground floor_commercial spaces—units with an urban character, and reduced
perimeter planter areas, including adjacent to the building edge._Residential units shall
provide a new access to the existing sidewalk.

28.

29.

30.

3L

Incorporate a minimum 10 foot wide sidewalk along the Bagdad Avenue frontage of the
retail space of building B.

Expand hardscape are at the right edge of the pedestrian apron on the corner of Bagdad
Avenue and Cesar Chavez Street to enhance the pedestrian experience.

Incorporate pavers or alternative decorative paving at vehicle entrances at Bagdad Avenue
and Tripoli Way consistent with the Pueblo Viejo design theme.

Reduce landscape areas directly at the sides of the retail space at Building A and replace
with decorative hardscape to accommodate outdoor seating and public engagement areas.

General - Engineering

32.

33.

34.

A focused Traffic Analysis (TA) shall be prepared for the project by an appropriately licensed
professional engineer. Prior to the preparation of the TA, the engineer shall submit a scoping
letter for the TA for the City Engineer’s approval. The TA shall include but not limited to
identification of trip generation, traffic distribution and impact on existing transportation
facilities and at time of General Plan build-out, all relevant, ingress and egress movements,
lines of sight, queuing analysis, and alignment studies (preliminary signing and striping plan).
Applicant shall obtain approval of site access and circulation from the Fire Marshall.

A preliminary soils report shall be prepared for the project by an appropriately licensed
professional engineer. At a minimum, the soils report shall provide specific analyses and
recommendations for grading, pavement structural sections, and infiltration.

A comprehensive drainage report, prepared by California Registered Civil Engineer, shall be
submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer prior to issuance of any permits. The

Item 3.

73




Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

report shall contain pre- and post-development hydrology maps showing on-site and off-site
tributary drainage areas and shall be prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Riverside County Flood Control District. Adequate provisions shall be made to accept and
conduct the existing tributary drainage flows around or through the site in a manner which
will not adversely affect adjacent or downstream properties. If the design of the project
includes a retention basin, it shall be sized to contain the runoff resulting from a 10-year storm
event and the runoff from a 100-year storm event shall be contained within basin with shallow
ponding (3.5 max.). The basin shall be designed to evacuate a 10-year storm event within 72
hours. The size of the retention basin(s) shall be determined by the hydrology report and be
approved by the City Engineer. Retention basin shall be provided with a minimum of 2.00
feet sandy soil if determined to contain silt or clay materials. Maximum allowable percolation
rate for design shall be 10 gal./s.f./day unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. A
percolation test for this site is required to be submitted. A combination drywell vertical drain
field shall be constructed at all points where runoff enters the retention basin. Drywell &
vertical drain field design shall be based on soils borings made at the proposed drywell
locations after the retention basins have been rough graded. Minimum depth shall be 45-feet.
A log that includes sieve analysis for each strata of the borings shall be submitted to the City
Engineer for confirmation of depth of the vertical drain fields. Underground retention under
the proposed parking area will be considered as an alternative to surface retention subject to
the approval of the City Engineer.

Prepare and record necessary drainage easements to implement the project in accordance with
drainage law.

A storm water quality management plan shall be prepared for the project by California
Registered Civil Engineer in compliance with NPDES and State Water Quality Control Board
regulations. The project shall be designed to specify preferential use of Low Impact
Development Best Management Practices that reduce pollutants and runoff volume.

Applicant shall comply with the valley wide NPDES permit requirements including but not
limited to submittal of a WQMP for plan review accompanied by a $3,000 plan check deposit
for approval including executed maintenance agreement. All unused plan check fees will be
refunded to the applicant upon approval of the Final WQMP.

The developer shall submit a Fugitive Dust Control and Erosion Control plan in accordance
with Guidelines set forth by CMC and SCAQMD to maintain wind and drainage erosionand
dust control for all areas disturbed by grading. Exact method(s) of such control shall be subject
to review and approval by the City Engineer. No sediment is to leave the site. Additional
securities, in bond form, in amount of $2,000.00 per acre of gross area, and a one- time cash
deposit of $2,000.00 are required to insure compliance with this requirement. No work may
be started on or off site unless the PM-10 plan has been approved, the original plans, and
executed dust control agreement, are filed in the engineering department at the City of
Coachella.

Applicant shall submit for review and approval by the City Engineer all documents related to
any existing and proposed on-site and off-site easements that may affect the development of
the site. All easements shall be identified on the engineering plans.

Item 3.

74




Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

40. Site access improvements shall be in conformance with the requirements of Title 24 of the
California Administrative Code. This shall include access ramps for off-site and on-site streets
as required.

41. Applicant shall obtain approval of site access and circulation from Fire Marshall.

42. The applicant shall provide necessary utility easements for 11D and underground overhead
distribution lines within the project boundaries. Applicant shall submit to the City a letter
from 11D that satisfies this requirement.

43. The applicant shall pay all necessary plan check, permit and inspection fees. Fees will be
determined when plans are submitted to the City Engineering Department for plan check.

ROUGH GRADING:
44. Prepare and submit rough grading and erosion control plans for the project.
45. The project’s soils engineer shall certify to the adequacy of the grading plan.

46. All projects developing one (1) acre or more of total land area, or which are part of a larger
phased development that will disturb one acre of land, are required to obtain coverage under
the State Water Resources Control Board’s (SWRCB) General Permit for storm water
discharges associated with construction activity. Proof of filing a Notice of Intent (NOI) with
the SWRCB for coverage under this permit is required. The Waste Discharger’s Identification
Number (WDID), issued by the SWRCB, must be shown on the grading plans. The project’s
Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan shall be submitted for the City’s review and approval.

PRECISE GRADING:

47. A precise grading/improvement plan, prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer,
showing building footprints, pad elevations, finished grades, drainage routes, retaining walls,
erosion control, slope easements, and all other pertinent information shall be submitted for
review and approval by the City Engineer.

48. Rough grading shall be certified by the project soils engineer prior to issuance of a permit for
precise grading or building construction.

50. If applicant is planning to build a wall, separate permits shall be required for wall construction.
The maximum height of any wall shall be limited to six (6) feet as measured from an average
of the ground elevations on either side.

STREET IMPROVEMENTS:

51. Street improvement plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall be
submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer. All street improvements including

Item 3.

75




Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

street lights shall be designed and constructed in conformance with City Municipal Code,
General Plan, and Standards and Specifications. Street flow line grade shall have aminimum
slope of 0.35 %.

52. Applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site improvements including street pavement,
curb, gutter, sidewalk, street trees, perimeter walls, perimeter landscaping and irrigation,
storm drain, street lights, and any other incidental works necessary to complete the
improvements. Driveways shall conform to City of Coachella standards for commercial
driveways with a minimum width of 24.00 feet and curbed radius entrances.

53. Applicant shall construct and dedicate the following streets and street improvements to
conform to the General Plan and/or requirements of Traffic Study.

1) Tripoli Way- Public Roadway as shown on the RAC and per these comments shall
include the following:

a.

This street is within Pueblo Viejo District Limit with 33.17 feet of right-of-way from
Center Line of Street to the West side of the Street. If street widening is included in
the project design for street side parking, then additional right-of-way shall be
dedicated such that all public parking and public sidewalks are located within
dedicated public right-of-way.

Applicant shall install all sidewalk and curb and gutter transitions to uniformly
connect to existing adjacent improvements and coordinate installation and/or
relocation of fire hydrants, water meters, storm drain, wells, street lights and all other
appurtenances by Pueblo Viejo Design Guidelines as required to the satisfaction of
the City Engineer.

Applicant shall construct all appurtenant roadway components on west side of Tripoli
Way between 6" Street and Bagdad Avenue such as, but not limited to: curb and
gutter, sidewalk, Landscaping, Decorative pavers Elements, Decorative Street Lights,
ADA ramps, Traffic control striping, legends, Traffic control signs and street name
signs to match Downtown Pueblo Viejo Design Guidelines and to the satisfaction of
the City Engineer.

Applicant shall underground all existing dry utilities along west side of atseuthbound
lane-en Tripoli Way Between 6" Street and Bagdad Avenue such as, but not limited
to: power poles, telecommunication poles and all other existing dry utilities to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

2) 61 Street- Public Roadway as shown on the RAC and per these comments shall include
the following:

a.

b.

This street is within Pueblo Viejo District Limit with 75 feet of right-of-way.

Applicant shall install all sidewalk and curb and gutter transitions to uniformly
connect to existing adjacent improvements and coordinate installation and/or
relocation of fire hydrants, water meters, storm drain, wells, street lights and all other

Item 3.

76




Item 3.

Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

appurtenances by Pueblo Viejo Design Guidelines as required to the satisfaction of
the City Engineer.

c. Applicant shall construct all appurtenant roadway components on South side of 6%
Street between Cesar Chavez Street and Palm Avenue such as, but not limited to:
curb and gutter, sidewalk, Landscaping, Decorative pavers Elements, Decorative
Street Lights, ADA ramps, Traffic control striping, legends, Traffic control signs and
street name signs to match Downtown Pueblo Viejo Design Guidelines and to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

d. Applicant shall underground all existing dry utilities at eastbound lane on 6" Street
between Cesar Chavez Street and Tripoli Way such as, but not limited to: power
poles, telecommunication poles and all other existing dry utilities to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer.

e. Applicant shall improve Intersection at the Northeast and southeast corners of 6%
street and Cesar Chavez Street including new ADA ramps, Decorative Crosswalk,
Traffic Signal modification (if required), Striping and Landscaping by Pueblo Viejo
Design Guidelines and to the Satisfaction of the City Engineer.

f. 6" Street improvement plans and specifications shall be provided by the City of
Coachella to the project applicant and shall include clearly delineated improvements
described as Phase 11 of the ST-130 Pueblo Viejo Sustainable Transportation Project.
The City of Coachella shall complete all improvements identified as Phase | and the
project applicant shall complete all improvements identified as phase I, which are
generally described above, to complete the 6" Street urban corridor improvements.

3) Bagdad Avenue- Public Roadway as shown on the RAC and per these comments shall
include the following:

a. This street is within Pueblo Viejo District Limit with 30 feet of right-of-way. If street
widening is included in the project design for street side parking, then additional
right-of-way shall be dedicated such that all public parking and public sidewalks are
located within dedicated public right-of-way.

b. Applicant shall install all sidewalk and curb and gutter transitions to uniformly
connect to existing adjacent improvements and coordinate installation and/or
relocation of fire hydrants, water meters, storm drain, wells, street lights and all other
appurtenances by Pueblo Viejo Design Guidelines as required to the satisfaction of
the City Engineer.

c. Applicant shall construct all appurtenant roadway components on the North side of
Bagdad Avenue between Cesar Chavez Street and Tripoli Way such as, but not
limited to: curb and gutter, sidewalk, Landscaping, Decorative pavers Elements,
Decorative Street Lights, ADA ramps, Traffic control striping, legends, Traffic
control signs and street name signs to match Downtown Pueblo Viejo Design
Guidelines and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. Improvements shall include

77




Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

Item 3.

replacement of the existing ADA ramp at the northeast corner of Cesar Chavez and
Bagdad Avenue.

d. Applicant shall underground all existing dry utilities at westbound lane on Bagdad
Avenue between Cesar Chavez Street and Tripoli Way such as, but not limited to:
power poles, telecommunication poles and all other existing dry utilities to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

4). Cesar Chavez Street — Public Roadway as shown on the RAC and per comments shall
include the following:

e This street has 50 feet of right-of-way measured from centerline. If street widening
is included in the project design then additional right-of-way shall be dedicated such
that all public parking and public sidewalks are located within dedicated public right-
of-way.

e Applicant shall install all sidewalk and curb and gutter transitions to uniformly
connect to existing adjacent improvements and coordinate installation and/or
relocation of fire hydrants, water meters, storm drain, wells, street lights and all other
appurtenances per City Guidelines as required to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer.

o Applicant shall construct all appurtenant roadway components on the East side of
Cesar Chavez Street between Bagdad Avenue and 6th street such as, but not limited
to: sidewalk, Landscape, Street Lights, ADA ramps, traffic control striping, legends,
Traffic control signs and street name signs to match Downtown Pueblo Viejo Design
Guidelines and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. Improvements shall include
replacement of the existing ADA ramp at the northeast corner of Cesar Chavez and
Bagdad Avenue, as well as installation of a two head street light fixture within the
median at the Bagdad Avenue crosswalk and a single head street light near the
midway point of the project frontage. All sidewalk improvements and modifications
shall conform to landscape requirements presented in other conditions of approval.

SEWER and WATER IMPROVEMENTS:

54. Sewer & Water Improvement Plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall
be submitted for engineering plan check and City Engineer approval.

55. Applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site water improvements and any other incidental
works necessary to complete the improvements. Size and location of sewer and water
improvements shall be approved by the City Engineer.

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS:

56. A final soils report, compaction report and rough grading certificate shall be submitted and
approved prior to issuance of any building permits.

78




Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

58. Prior to issuance of building permits, all required public improvements, including landscaping
and lighting of the retention basins, and landscaped areas along the exterior streets, shall be
completed or secured with appropriate sureties to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. An
engineering final inspection is required. "As-built" plans shall be submitted to and approved
by the City Engineer. Prior to acceptance of the improvements by the City, such plans, once
approved, shall be given to the city on compact disk in AutoCad format. All off-site and on-
site improvements shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to
acceptance of improvements for maintenance by the City.

59. The applicant’s Civil Engineer shall field verify and certify that all BMPs are designed,
constructed, and functional in accordance with the approved WQMP.

PRIOR TO RELEASE OF OCCUPANCY PERMITS/ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS:

60. Prior to issuance of certificate of occupancy, all public improvements, including landscaping
and lighting of the retention basins, and landscaped areas along the exterior streets, shall be

Item 3.

79




Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

Lan

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. An engineering final inspection is required.
"As-built” plans shall be submitted to and approved by the City Engineer. Prior to acceptance
of the improvements by the City, such plans, once approved, shall be given to the city on
compact disk in AutoCad format. All off-site and on-site improvements shall be completed to
the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to acceptance of improvements for maintenance by
the City.

in

Final landscaping and irrigation plans shall be submitted to the Development Services
Department for review and approval. Said plans shall conform to the landscaping plan
submitted as part of the subject Architectural Review, and as conditioned herein. Landscape
lighting shall be incorporated. All landscape materials shall be identified on a legend and
identified graphically on a landscape plan including planting counts, tree caliper, and planted
tree heights.

Landscaping and irrigation shall be provided in accordance with Section 17.54.010(J) of the
Municipal Code and in accordance with the State Model Water Efficient Landscape
Ordinance (AB 1881). Water budget calculations, including the Maximum Applied Water
Allowance (MAWA) and Estimated Total Water Use (ETWU) shall be provided as part of
the landscaping and irrigation plan.

The proposed landscape shall be in conformance with the City's Landscape Development
Guidelines and should include water-efficient plantings as encouraged for the commercial
development. A detailed landscape and irrigation plan shall be submitted that addresses
landscape requirements for the project site. All landscaping shall fulfill the general
requirements of the Coachella Municipal Code Chapter 17.54 as follows:

a Internal landscaping equal to a minimum of five percent 5% of the parking area and
driveway area is required and shall be distributed throughout the parking area.

b.  All landscape planter beds in interior parking areas shall be not less than five (5) feet
in width and bordered by a concrete curb not less than six (6) inches nor more than
eight (8) inches in height adjacent to the parking surface. The landscaped planter
along the north side of the drive-thru lane shall be a minimum of five feet in width.

¢ Where a drive aisle abuts the side of a parking space a landscaped planter shall
separate the parking space from the drive aisle.

d At least one (1) fifteen (15) gallon tree shall be provided within the parking area for
every ten (10) parking spaces, with size, height and species acceptable to staff.

e All internal landscape planters shall have permanent and automatic sprinkler or drip
irrigation systems.

The landscape plan shall be revised to accommodate usable areas at the west side of Building
A for residents and the customers of the retail space that allow for greater visibility and
consistent with the Pueblo Viejo Revitalization Plan goals for common use spaces. Plant
trees in grates on east and west sides of Building A retail space.

The Planning Division may request minor substitutions of plant materials or request
additional sizing or quantity of materials during plan check.

Item 3.

80




Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

66.

67.

68.

The applicant shall submit, and must obtain approval from the Development Services
Director, a letter from a registered landscape architect confirming that landscaping and
irrigation have been installed in accordance with the approved plans prior to issuance of a
certificate of occupancy. Any damaged, dead or decayed landscaping landscape areas within
the remainder of the commercial center shall be replaced per approved landscape plans upon
landscape inspection by the Development Services Department and prior to issuance of a
certificate of occupancy.

The site landscaping shall be maintained in good condition at all times, and the owner or
operator of the facility shall be responsible for replacing any damaged, dead or decayed
landscaping as soon as practicable, and in accordance with the approved landscape plan.

Incorporate Hong Kong Orchid Tree for the parkway shade tree along Cesar Chavez Street
and use of California Fan Palm shall be replaced with Date Palm.

Coachella Valley Water District:

69.

Applicant must comply with Coachella Valley Water District regulations pertaining to
irrigation infrastructure protect-in-place practices, relocation or abandonment of
infrastructure, if needed.

Eire Department (chris.cox@fire.ca.oov

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

Fire Hydrants and Fire Flow: Prior to the issuance of building permits, plans for the water
system shall be submitted to the fire department for review and approval. The water system
shall be capable of delivering the required fire flow. Based on the application, the largest
proposed building is 4500 square feet, assuming construction type VB, with fire sprinklers,
therefore the minimum required fire flow is 1000 gallons per minute at 20 psi for 2 hours.
Fire hydrant location and spacing shall comply with the fire code. An approved water supply
for fire protection during construction shall be made available prior to the arrival of
combustible materials on site. Reference 2019 California Fire Code (CFC) 507.5.1, 3312,
Appendices B and C.

Fire Department Access: Prior to building permit issuance, a fire access site plan shall be
approved. Approved vehicle access, either permanent or temporary, shall be provided during
construction. CFC 503.1.1, 3310.1 and 503.2.1

Requests for installation of traffic calming designs/devices on fire apparatus access roads
shall be submitted and approved by the Office of the Fire Marshal. Ref. CFC 503.4.1

Phased Construction Access: If construction is phased, each phase shall provide approved
access for fire protection prior to any construction. Ref. CFC 503.1

Construction Permits: Building construction plans and fuel dispensing plans shall be
submitted to the Office of the Fire Marshal for review and approval. Final conditions will be

Item 3.

81



mailto:chris.cox@fire.ca.gov

Item 3.

Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

addressed when these plans are reviewed. A copy of the fuel dispensing plans, approved by
Riverside County Environmental Health Department, shall be provided to the Office of the
Fire Marshal prior to permit issuance.

75. Fire Sprinkler System: All new commercial structures 3,600 square feet or larger shall be
protected with a fire sprinkler system. Ref CFC 903.2 as amended by the City of Coachella.

76. Fire sprinkler system riser shall not be obstructed in any manner. If a system riser is to be
concealed by means of a wall, soffit, column, or other building construction, it shall be
provided with eighteen (18) inch clearance to each side and to the front of the system riser.
Access shall be provided by means of a door with the minimum dimensions two (2) feet six
(6) inches in width by six (6) feet eight (8) inches in height from the exterior of the building
directly to the riser as approved by the fire code official Ref. RVC Fire 1B 06-07.

77. Fire Alarm and Detection System: A water flow monitoring system and/or fire alarm system
may be required and determined at time of building plan review. Ref. CFC 903.4, CFC 907.2
and NFPA 72

78. Knox Box and Gate Access: Buildings shall be provided with a Knox Box. The Knox Box
shall be installed in an accessible location approved by the Office of the Fire Marshal. Gates
installed across access walkways and maintained locked shall be provided with approved
Knox equipment. Electric gate operators shall be provided with Knox key switches. Electric
gate operators shall also be connected to a remote signal receiver compatible for use with the
preemption devices on the Riverside County fire apparatus. The gate shall automatically open
upon receiving a remote signaled form the fire apparatus and remain in the fully open
position for a minimum of 20 seconds. Ref. CFC 506.1

79. Addressing: All commercial buildings shall display street numbers in a prominent location

on the street side of the premises and additional locations as required. Ref. CFC 505.1 and
County of Riverside Office of the Fire Marshal Standard #07-01

Environmental Compliance:

80. Submit water and sewer plans for approval from Utilities Manager- project required to
connect to City public sewer and water system.

81. The project will require a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP)

82. Project will be required to install 4G Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) meters at the
residential services.

83. Backflow devices are required on irrigation meters and all non-residential meters.

84. Water service line Type K Soft Copper Tubing Polywrap-C Blue (6Mil, use applicable size)

82




Item 3.

Resolution No. 2022-48 EXHIBIT A

85. Prior to acceptance of the first set of plan check, the developer.engineer must submit to the
City of Coachella hydraulic model and relevant information clearing fire flow requirements,.
The developer will be responsible for needed improvements as determined by the hydraulic
model.

Code Enforcement
86. Fencing and windscreen that is adequately secured and braced to the satisfaction of the Code

Enforcement Manager shall be constructed within 2 months of project approval to deter
vandalism and dumping that is regularly occurring on the property.

83




Item 3.

TRIPOLI - AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

Attachment 2

CiTY OF COACHELLA
TRIPOLI - AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

DESIGN GUIDELINES

APPLICANT:
TriPOLI CIC, LP
6339PASEO DEL LAGO
CARLSBAD, CA 92011
CONTACT: DAvVIDDAVIS
760-456-6000

JURISDICTION:

CITY OF COACHELLA
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
1515 SIXTHSTREET
COACHELLA, CA 92236
CoNTACT: Gabriel
Perez Luistoprez 760-
398-3502 062

PREPARED BY.
TriPOLI CIC, LP
6339PAsSEO DEL LAGO
CaArLsBAD, CA 92011
CONTACT: DAvVIDDAVIS
760-456-6000

84




TRIPOLI - AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

Item 3.

85




TRIPOLI - AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

Item 3.

86




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Item 3.

INTRODUCTION

These Design Guidelines are required pursuant to the City of Coachella C-
G PUD (General Commercial, Planned Unit Development). This Overlay
Zone will provide for a mixed-use development for up to 108 apartments
with approximately 4,350 3,000 square feet of ground floor commercial uses
and urban open space.

The purpose of these Design Guidelines and Development Standards are
to provide guidance for development, construction, new buildings, building
additions, site work and landscaping. These guidelines will be used in
addition to the zoning in establishing permitted uses, activities and
development standards.

These guidelines may be amended from time to time. It is the owner’s
responsibility to be sure they have current Guidelines and have reviewed all
applicable sections, ordinances or regulations that may affect any
improvements.

The illustrations, photos and exhibits in this document are intended to
convey a concept, not detailed construction drawings for construction. The
intent of these guidelines are to provide a framework for preparing
construction drawings for approval.

In the event of a conflict between these guidelines and any local, state or
federal building and zoning codes. The jurisdictional approved documents
shall govern.

87




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS Item 3.

DESIGN GUIDELINES

Il. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed project consists of a mixed-use development on vacant land
located on 2.79 acres. The site is in the City of Coachella within a Planned
Development (PD) Overlay Zone for a future mixed-use building. The
residential affordable apartments will consist of 108 units including twenty-
nine (30_29) three-bedroom, fifty-two (51 52) two-bedroom and twenty-
seven (27) one-bedroom units for families. The project includes one (1)
residential unit for a fulltime onsite manager. The Commercial portion
consist of two commercial locations. Building A proposes to build 2,200 1,805
sf retail space and will front onto 6" Street. Building B proposes to build 2,125
1.413 sf of retail space and will be located on the corner of Cesar Chavez
and Bagdad Avenue. Building A will be a 3-story structure of wood frame
construction with Ae elevators. Building B will be a 3 4-story structure of
wood frame construction and also_include elevators. The project will
incorporate green strategies such as low flow water fixtures and drought
tolerant/native landscaping. The project will be energy effient and include
solar for power generation. Onsite social services provided to residents at
no charge.

A 2,200 1;296 sf Community Meeting Room along with a-652-sf Multi-
Purpose room will serve the entire project and include a computer lab,
kitchen, and leasing office. Laundry facilities will be located in each building.
The project will include ADA accessibility and hearing/visually impaired
units.

The architectural style utilizes the latest design guidelines from the “Pueblo
Viejo Implementation Strategy Plan”. This will consist of private patios and
balconies along with tower elements.

A. C-G PUD (GENERAL COMMERCIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT)
OVERLAY ZONE)

I. Commercial

This intent of this zone is to provide for and encourage the orderly development
of commercial areas designed to serve the community-wide needs. Such areas
provide a wide variety of goods and services and must be consistent with the
overall development of the city and its environs. The provisions of this zone
intend to ensure that such commerce will be compatible with adjacent,
noncommercial development, and to minimize the undesirable effects of heavy
traffic, type of activity, and to set forth site requirements.

2. Residential

The purpose of this chapter is to provide for attractive, planned, residential
districts in accordance with the general plan; to provide a means of achieving
greater quality, variety and flexibility in residential development on relatively
large parcels of land; to encourage more imaginative and innovative design of

88




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

Item 3.

DESIGN GUIDELINES

projects; to promote more desirable living environments that would not be
possible through the strict application of zoning standards; to assist in the
development of old or blighted neighborhoods by providing incentives for higher
quality multiple residential housing and project design; to require a more efficient
use of open space, separation of pedestrian and vehicular traffic and increased
project amenities; to insure that such projects will be assets to their surrounding
neighborhoods, and safeguards will be required through the conditional use
procedure. The overall plan shall provide equivalent or higher standards of
development, operation, light, air, safety, convenience and aesthetics, than if
developed under the underlying zone.

89




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Item 3.

B. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

The following Property Development Standards shall apply. Dimensions
and standards are minimums, and minor variations may be permitted
subject to Planning Director review approval, providing the minimums
specified herein are maintained as average minimums.

Setbacks:

Front Setback

Zero (0) to ten (10) feet from
property line.

Minimum Building Height

Three (3) stories or forty (40) feet

Upper Floor Setbacks

Ten (10) foot front setback for
stories exceeding four (4) stories.

Allowed Residential Densities

Minimum twenty (20) D.U. per
acre/Maximum sixty sexty-five (65)
D.U. per acre

Parking:

Residential: 0.5 per one-bedroom,
0.5 per two-bedroom, 0.5 per
three-bedroom. Guest parking 0%.

Retail/Commercial: 40% of 4/1000
sf.

On-Street parking that is within
500 hundred feet of the main
entrance of a development may be
utilized to satisfy the requirement
for off-street parking.

Unit Size:

1-bedroom 542 570 sf
2-bedroom 702 780 sf
3-bedroom 932 1000 sf

Walls and Fences:

Walls and fences are subject to the regulations set forth in the City of
Coachella Zoning Ordinance. Fencing and wall design shall adhere to the
parameters described in these Design Guidelines and/or Codes, Covenants

and Restrictions.

90




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Item 3.

Apartment Development:

Conceptual Site Plan is depicted on Figure 1, Conceptual Floor Plans are
depicted on Figure 2, Conceptual Unit Plans are depicted on Figure 3 and
Conceptual Elevations are depicted on Figure 4.

Animal Keeping:
Consistent with an affordable type of community proposed, pets and animal
raising are not permitted.

91




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS Item 3.

DESIGN GUIDELINES

C. PARKING REGULATIONS

All off-street parking shall be in accordance with the regulations set forth by
the State of California Density Bonus Law. Parking areas shall be
landscaped in accordance with these Design Guidelines.

D. GENERAL GUIDELINES - PROJECT THEME

The project is designed as an 100% Affordable Apartment Project whereby
the natural character of the site and surroundings are integrated into the
community design (Figure 6 Landscape Concept Plan). A landscape theme
reminiscent of early California Heritage is used. Landscape themes on 6
Avenue will continue the current design associated with the adjacent Pueblo
Viejo Villas project and the DPSS building. The property features quality
commercial themes along the frontages of the community serving facilities
located on Cesar Chavez and 6" Street. The project will extend these
themes down Tripoli Way and Bagdad with angled parking with landscape
pockets. This project will benefit by the Sunline Transit Center which is
located on the southeast corner of 4th Street and Cesar Chavez.

E. PURPOSE AND INTENT

The purpose and intent of these Design Guidelines is to integrate
appropriate planning, architectural and landscape architectural elements
within the community and to guide the City of Coachella in the building of
the project. The intent of these guidelines is to establish an individual
identity, yet blend in with the overall community theme, as well as to blend
with the overall community character of Coachella.

These guidelines, together with the other sections of this document, provide
the basis of design consistency and serve as an instrument of approval by
the City of Coachella Planning Department. This document is used together
with the City of Coachella Zoning Ordinance, Building Codes and Planning
Regulations that may be amended from time to time. In addition, changes
may be made to these guidelines over the life of the project to further
enhance the community.

F. LANDSCAPE DESIGN GUIDELINES

To reinforce the character of the project, landscape design guidelines for
development is set forth in this section, compliment the qualities of the
natural environment and surrounding community character. The project
incorporates several development standards typical of rural desert
communities such as roads without sidewalks, trails and informal
landscaping. Public Roads designed to City standards, flow with the

92




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Item 3.

neighborhood and provide continuity. Streetscapes, as well as project
entries and key focal points entering the community emulate the character
through appropriate signage, landscaping and materials. The project
landscape palette complements the themes and character for the City of
Coachella.

Adherence to these guidelines helps ensure a quality living environment by
creating design continuity throughout the project.

The Landscape Design Guidelines consist of a written summary and
graphic exhibits that address the design of typical project elements. All
project entry monuments, street scenes, community edges, boundaries and
recreation amenities are delineated to further explain the personality of the
community. The objectives of the Landscape Design Guidelines are:

e To provide guidance in formulating precise development plans.

e To provide a guide for public agencies, builders, engineers, architects,
landscape architects, other professionals and homeowners.

e To provide the City of Coachella assurances that the projectdevelops
in accordance with the quality and character proposed in this
document.

The Plant Material Guidelines section presents the overall community
landscape concept and plant material palette. Information relative to
seasonal planting constraints, climate constraints, planting installation,
irrigation installation and landscape maintenance are presented as an aid
to successful implementation.

93




Item 3.

AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS

DESIGN GUIDELINES

Street Scenes

The street scene guidelines establish street hardscape, furniture, landscape
development, as well as a framework for consistency of design. All landscaping
construction drawings require approval of the City of Coachella Planning
Department.

Primary project Frontage is located along the Western Property Line. This
street scene development provides for community commercial elements
and serves as an introduction to the Commercial uses. The Cesar Chavez
street scene is designed to accommodate pedestrian uses and local traffic
from the apartments and Transit Center.

The street tree-planting concept for Cesar Chavez, features a row of trees
and sidewalk adjacent to the commercial activity. The area between the
sidewalk and residential units will be landscaped with desert planting and
decomposed granite. The area adjacent to commercial spaces shall be
enhance concrete which reflect a local natural appearance.

6" Street

This is a local road that has been enhance and is a primary access to the
City facilities. The intent is to encourage visitors to walk along shaded
walkways, trellis’'s and tree canopies. Elements to be included are
landscape planters, interlocking permeable pavers, bike racks, and street
trees in planters, benches, sidewalk opening, decorative roadway crossings
and trash receptacles.

inoli
This is a local road intended to complete the circulation between the existing
residential and commercial activity to the south to Bagdad Avenue. The
roadway has been design to accommodate angled parking which provides
character along with landscape pockets in an urban style to reduce traffic
speeds and provide for traffic calming. Additional traffic calming measure
may be required if undesirable conditions are determined.

Bagdad Avenue

This is a local road intended to connect eastern neighborhoods to Cesar
Chavez. The roadway has been design to accommodate angled parking
which provides character along with landscape pockets in an urban style to
reduce traffic speeds and provide for traffic calming.

94




AFFORDABLE FAMILY APARTMENTS Item 3.

DESIGN GUIDELINES

Lan Planting and Irrigation

Overall plant material selection for given project areas has compatible
drought resistant characteristics wherever possible. Irrigationprogramming
is designed to minimize water application for the entire landscape setting.
The limited plant material selections for common landscape areas are
contained in the following plant palettes. Plant material not listed may be
utilized provided it is appropriate to the intended community character, site
conditions and concerns for maintenance.

COMMUNITY PLANT PALLET

Botanical Name Common Name
Trees
Acacia Aneura Mulsa
Bauhinia x blakeana Hong Kong Orchid
Chilopsis L. ‘Timeless Beauty’ Desert Willow
Ebenopsis Ebano Texas Ebony
Ulmus Parvifolia ‘Drake’ Drake EIm
Phoenix Dactylifera Date Palm

Large Shrubs

Encelia Californica Brittlebush

Leucophylium Fruitescens Texas Ranger

Salvia Leucantha Mexican Bush Sage
Small Shrubs

Carex Tumulicola Foothill Sedge

Dalea Greggi Trailing Indigo Bush

Dasyliron Wheeleri Spoon Yucca

Festuca Glauca Elijah Blue

Nandina ‘Compacta’ Dwarf Nandina

Rosa x ‘Noare’ Carpet Rose

Stipa Tenuissima Mexican Feather Grass

Ground Cover
Decomposed Granite DG

95




Attachnmemnt=3
Item 3.

1S LSTUONNS

51ST AVE

BAGDAD AVE

Cesar Chavez Street

BAGDAD AVE

DAMASCUS AVE
DAMASCUS AVE

SUEZ RD

(1]

MEDINA AVE H

[

CAIRO AVE

TRIPOLI WAY

CAIRO AVE

CALLE CAMACHO

CAIRO AVE

ARABY AVE

Vicinity Map

96



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3


KA2021122101 - chetsea tripoli aptsip-01101_working fles\02_cadi2022_0211_tripoli_site.dwg

22105-P-01

21452022

~

Existing Park

REFER TO CIVIL FOR
SITE INFORMATION.

CESAR CHAVEZ

SGP

ARCHITECTURE
AND PLANNING

Chelsea Tripoli Apartments

Coachella, California

\

Attachment 4

LEGEND Item 3.
RETAIL
COMMUNITY
UNITS
CIRCULATION
SUPPORT
STORAGE/MECH
PROJECT RESUME
[Buiding &
Building  UnitMet TotalNet CityParking  Density Bonus Req'd
Unit Type Ll cleveld levsld Total Area  Area(sqft] RatioReq. Parking RatioReq. Parking
Type 1: 1 BR/1Bath inside cormer 2 4 4 10 581 5,810 1 0.5 5
Type 2: 1 BR/1Bath 1 1 1 3 586 1,758 1 05 15
Type 3: 2 BR/1Bath 5 [ & 17 799 13,583 1 0.5 85
Type 4: 3 BR/2Bath 4 5 5 14 1,061 14,854 1 0.5 7
Total 12 16 16 44 36,005 22
Amenities
Retail 1805 0 0 1,805 (4/1000)*40% 2.89
Laundry 494 1] o 494
Lobby 762 0 o 762
Multi-Purpose Room 652 4] o
Utility/ Storage 891 283 263 1,417
Sub Total 4,478
Building A Total (NSF) 40,483 24.89
Net to Gross Ratio 23% 9,311
Total Gross Square Feet 49,794
[Building B
Building  UnitMet  Total Net  City Parking  Density Bonus Req'd
Unit Type tevell  level2  level3  Leveld Total Area  Arealsqft]  RatioReq. Parking RatioReq. Parking
Type 1: 1 BR/1Bath inside corner o 1 1 1 3 581 1,743 1 a5 1.5
Type 2: 1 BR/1Bath 1 3 3 a 1 586 6,446 1 0.5 55
Type 3: 2 BR/1Bath 8 9 9 9 35 799 27,965 1 0.5 17.5
Type 4: 3 BR/2Bath 4 4 4 3 15 1,061 15,915 1 0.5 75
Total 13 17 17 17 64 52,069 32
Amenities
Retail 1413 0 0 0 1,413 (4/1000)*40% 2.26
Laundry 338 0 o o 338
Lobby 616 594 594 594
[Community Room 1296 ] o o 1,296 (4/1000)*40% 2.07
Utility/ Storage 592 538 538 538 2,206
Sub Total 5,253
Building A Total (NSF) 57,322 36.33
Net to Gross Ratio 24% 13,757
Total Gross Square Feet 71,079
bﬁum GSF
Total G5F Buildings A+B 120,873
Total Lot Area (Acres) 121,968 28
FAR 0.99
Total Units 108
Density (DUSA) 38.57
[Unit Types 18R 28R 38R Total Units
Total By Unit Type 27 52 29 108
Unit Percent % 25% A8% 27% 100%
Parking Required Area/ Units 61.22
Retail Parking Required 3,218 SF 40% of 4/1000 5.15
[Community Room Parking Required 1,296 SF 40% of 4/1000 207
Residential Parking Required 108 Units 0.5 per Unit 54.00
Guest Parking Required 1] 0.00
Parking Provided 159
(On Street Parking Provided 41
On Site Parking Provided 118
Surplus +97.8

Site Plan
[o



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


- chetsea tripoli apts\p-01101_working files\02_cad\2022_0211_tripoli_site.

22105-P-01 k202122101

21452022

e Attachment 4 | ens

MMMMMM ITY

CIRCULATION

" Building B |
. Only at Level 4

.

COMMUNITY

]D'(_‘_] —~— /1

RETAIL

Building B | Floor Plan

N e
i o 48 16 32"

SG PA ARCHITECTURE Chelsea Tripoli Apartments ‘ N

| Building Floor Planl:
AND PLANNING | Coscrete Calfomia CHELSEA 9 -



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


Item 3.

Attachment 4

\“““‘\ 4
— \7
T :
—— R
E% I
9c o
o =
. wwu ~
Cmt T
.
g 2
<} T2
(5] 2]
© -
0
{

]
]
U
]

T

Unit Type 4
3-Bedroom
1,061 SQ. FT.

2-Bath

Unit Type 3
2-Bedroom
799 SQ. FT.

1-Bath

Unit Type 2
1-Bedroom
1-Bath

586 SQ. FT.

) p— B
§2
2 x -
L85 g1
mc |
,r N
r —
) Um : H
i N
B )
55 B 4] e
c ———t | z B
- % W mw“ ?\MWB\\, ‘ H
= mmm (
ol s
0 — 0/ /1 ~
—S—A
——uC"G—
At N I
— 11’ N N
I [ e 5
S m - S
S 0% s 1 o=
E = X i HH...%H\ L2
= w £ .|_>,\¢,ﬂ\3\
, L m2 N ” il |
- PN=L-Cf] ¥
> i T i
S =
8 25
E 5
(3] c —
o2
m -X
-2
g2
L1
Sl
4 f—E—
S
= ﬁ
| L
” m | T
> ! 7
g g2 T E ] o
& Py S | B R SV o T
BN @z LR = .
| ol 7 >
| LS |
TG

)
MA N
5 3&
i \. 4
X N
-1 s

1B - 1-Bedroom Unit

1-Bath
581 SQ. FT.

Unit Type 1

Bmp-sueld Jun e|jayoe0o 2150 1202\PeY Z0\SalY Buniom™ | 0\L0-d\side 1jodiy BasBY0 - L01L22\LZ02\N

A fr ===

s |1 o s |
o 3 8& | W <
> @ 57 T8 | oo
- -~ me [ = N
whd - — | %mm |~ on
= i == :
U —G—A

1

Scale: 3/32"

20'

10'

10-d-G0Lee

Leoe/elis

Unit Pla

Chelsea Tripoli Apartments

‘ Coachella, California

ARCHITEGTURE
AND PLANNING


gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


SGPA

I8 F
wiia o

ARCHITECTURE
AND PLANNING

Chelsea Tripoli Apartments

Coachella, California

(D

LEEA

L G

Attachment 4

'(_;;QL
v J"_f,'!‘\,‘
. Mg
15 SRSy
Sk Rgfi P
R Ve
o B
L 4
: XL .
A% o ©
ST ) Pl 2

Item 3.

Elevations | Building B

100



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


$ +12-0" _-";-Eé' i 2‘!,“

T
(HE

—
L1

L

Attachment 4

]j‘m (1]

LI

T\ PR E
Mambal:

+0'-0" [ -

SGPA ARG PLakING

A e
P L &
3 ﬁ‘fl_ il
+21'-0" Y ¢ Tton!
i 3
g,
T, T,
-, K -
Yy -
; Ty %
+12'-0" b e
| .

+0-0"

Chelsea Tripoli Apartments

Coachella, California

CHELSEA

Elevations | Building A

Item 3.

101



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


Attachment 4 [ens

30 ARCHITECTURE | Chelsea Tripoli Apartments

Perspective | Corner of Cesar Chavez St & Baghdad Avel 102
B AHD PLENN'NG Coachella, California P l g



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


| ARCHITECTURE
4 AND PLANNING

Chelsea Tripoli Apartments

Coeachella, California

Attachment 4 | .-

]
(WU
T 11 1A

Perspective | Corner of 6th St & Tripoli Ave

103



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


Attachment 4
ML ltem 3.

IN THE CITY OF COACHELLA, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PRELIMINARY GRADING PLAN

FORTIONS OF LOT 11 AS SHOWN BY A MAP OF LANDS OF COACHELLA LAND AND WATER

COMPANY ON FILE IN BOOK 4 PAGE 53 OF MAPS,
/ < T x //K’A’ OF THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH,
/

RANGE 8 EAST, SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN. BASIS OF BEARINGS
THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE CALIFORNIA COORDINATE SYSTEM (CCSB3), ZONE
VI, AS DETERMINED LOCALLY BY THE LINE BETWEEN CONTINUOUS OPERATING GPS BASE STATION
STATIONS P491 AND PIN1, (EPOCH 2017.50) COORDINATES), AS COMPUTED AND PUBLISHED BY
SCRIPPS ORBIT AND PERMANENT ARRAY CENTER (SOPAC) AND THE CALIFORNIA SPATIAL REFERENCE

CENTER (cSRe), BENG: NORTH 78' 59" 35.49” WEST.
DATUM STATEMENT:

COORDINATES AS SHOWN HEREON ARE IN TERMS OF THE ~CALIFORNIA COORDINATE SYSTEM
(CCS83), ZONE VI, (EPOCH 2017.50), BASED LOCALLY UPON THE FOLLOWING CONTINUOUS GPS
CONTROL STATIONS AS PUBLISHED BY SCRIPPS ORBIT AND PERMANENT ARRAY CENTER (SOPAC) AND
THE CALIFORNIA SPATIAL REFERENCE CENTER (CSRC):

P491 N 2,152,729.752 E 6,568,729.532

PIN1 N 2,166,429.728 E B,498,293.942
COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE EXPRESSED IN TERMS OF THE US SURVEY FOOT.
DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GROUND UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
TO CONVERT GRID INVERSE DISTANCES TO GROUND DISTANCES, DIVIDE GRID DISTANCE BY
0.9999802878 COMBINED FACTOR TO OBTAIN GROUND DISTANGE.
CALCULATIONS FROM GRID TO GROUND VALUES AND CONVERGENCE ANGLE FOR THIS SURVEY WERE

W N\
FTA: ¥3:00. 69N
5. 1

INOT TO SCALE

-

(HARRISON ST)

o A0\
Y‘g \\Q\ \

A
N o
\ N =
N > (436.987C) ><¢ /KML\ \ N T41167.24 S MADE AT COORDINATES OF N. 2,189,636.169, E. 6,583,240.108, USING AN ELEVATION OF -65.999
RS S ) YA Q N = FEET(NAVDSS).
== s &\ v KN %
/;:"94’}»/ \z4.47 O%;J NQ - BENCHMARK
g N BENCHMARK: ~ CITY OF COACHELLA 1007 ~ELEVATION: 437.448  DATUM: NAVD88 + 500 FEET

DESCRIPTION: 3 1/2" BRASS DISK SET IN TOP OF THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A 1.5 FOOT HIGH
PLANTER WALL ARQUND THE “CITY OF COACHELLA” MONUVENT SIGN, LOCATED 25 FEET SOUTHEAST

Z
~ \O‘? 43280 BAGDAD [ AVE FROM THE BEGINNING OF THE SOUTH CURB RETURN AND 35 FEET SOUTH WEST OF SOUTHERLY CURB
4 AN N RETURN LOCATED AT THE INTERSECTION OF GRAPEFRUIT BLVD. (HIGHWAY 111) AND CESAR CHAVEZ
PROPOSED 10’ PEDESTRIAN' (HARRISON STREET).
O\
o BRI\ VICINITY MAP
7 S (sl N\ NOT TO SCALE
A2 ¥ N N\ TITLE REPORT SCHEDULE B EXCEPTIONS:
\ {33.99) &7 N\
/,’! \fﬁ Yo o\ \\ A AN EASEMENT FOR ROADS AND UTILITIES AND INCIDENTAL PURPOSES, RECORDED SEPTEMBER 12, 1961
I P2 \ AS INSTRWENT NO. 78010 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.
Fs :
i S \\\\% PROPERTY ADDRESS: IN FAVOR OF: TED KOLETOS AND ANGELA J. KOLETOS, HUSBAND AND WIFE, AS JOINT TENANTS
> ° . )
o SIS 51392 CESAR CHAVEZ ST AFFECTS: AS DESCRIBED THEREIN (AFFECTS PARCEL A)
(.80 ?M% ~— COACHELLA, CA 92236
A & AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC ROAD AND INCIDENTAL PURPOSES, RECORDED AUGUST 07, 1968 AS
A5 INSTRUMENT NO. 76372 OF OFFICTAL RECORDS.

433,93 N APNS IN FAVOR OF: THE CITY OF COACHELLA

IR s
4/7’:\(&}&' /\\ N 778-081-001 & 778-081-003 AFFECTS: AS DESCRIBED THEREIN (AFFECTS PARCEL A)
%
OWNERSHIP:

TITLE TO SAID ESTATE OF INTEREST AT THE AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY, AS
DISCLOSED BY THE PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORT IS VESTED IN:

R & L O'CONNELL, LLC, A FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

N I':; i
S SF
e :

\ ‘ EXISTING

cpe
\(436.01) [(435.48) /. 435.34) /(435.05
BUILDING =1 =
NB9'53'52° 209.00 % & q
BT G50 7
] =N £ S iy g
S Koka) DG N
= 5
436.4 ) \\\
L\/ e [} 8 15,07\
S o 2] | /N
436.71 t @ \
N ] \ (433.02 \ \
L ; S 90 ’ ) 43N13
> (436.66 = \¥ : N
<TC i 432.50M> {43990 \\
T S R €L N\
< \
O s 2 FROPOSED\(0” PEDRSTRIAN
i El AN PUBLIDAUTILITY
EASEHENT "\
‘ o b4 INNW272) N
<[ (436.8 = m " hwpss \ N\
ne ? ‘ \& /és—l N\
_ Sy AN
w AN 'Yy 5 AN
436 N ) g X(132.15 432.55) \
436.80 RS & AN
T o L - I\ N\
AN %%\ 34 A\
Nag53}52"E A | I RS ——— - Y
. " | I N89'53'52°E193.90 ) 432.06
T o | i | I i 433.40 \(433.73) \(433.71) \(433.70 \Egﬁjs) Eéss 87,
4 i S £ £ B
\ § \ - \ B!
w =4 s 433.62
feo | & BUILDING 'B —_yt d } It
“FF=436.80 gsb o (PR %
: FF=436. o= Tl Y \ A
5 » - o ‘ol (233.72 K
| PE=436. 3 : e :
d ’l § af, 5 \ g
g
< 10 ’> 1.0% 433.48 5]
134 (2]